AGENDA
ARCADIA CITY COUNCIL
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
23 NORTH POLK AVENUE, ARCADIA FL
TUESDAY, JULY 19, 2016
6:00 P.M.

INVOCATION, PLEDGE, CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

PRESENTATION
1. FPresentation to Lee Scarborough — Fifteen (15) Years of Service to the City of Arcadia
(Mayor Susan Coker)
2. Fresentation to Merton Snow — Five (5) Years of Service to the City of Arcadia
(Mayor Susan Coker)
3. Audit Report (Daniel Anderson, CPA for Mauldin & Jenkins)

CONSENT AGENDA

4. City Council Minutes for July 5, 2016 (Penny Delaney — City Clerk)
5. City of Arcadia Municipal Airport May Report (Terry Stewart — City Administrator)

ACTION ITEMS

6. Application of Ernest J. Hewett, Ill Regarding the Airport Advisory Committee (Terry Stewart —
City Administrator)

7. Application of Glenn Walker Regarding the Airport Advisory Committee (Terry Stewart — City
Administrator)

8. Ordinance No. 1016 — Request for Rezoning of property located at 1001 East Oak Street- First
Reading (Jeff Schmucker - Central Florida Regional Planning Council)

9. Ordinance No. 1017- Request for Future Land Use Map Amendment — Parcel Numbers 30-37-25-
0A00-1240-0000 and 30-37-25-0A00-1270-0000 - First Reading (Jeff Schmucker - Central Florida

tegional Planning Council)

10. Ordinance No. 1018 — Request for Rezoning - Parcel Numbers 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000 and 30-
57-25-0A00-1270-0000 - First Reading (Jeff Schmucker - Central Florida Regional Planning
Council)

11. Declare T-33 Aircraft at Lake Katherine as Excess (Terry Stewart — City Administrator)

12. City Administrator Performance Evaluation (Mayor Susan Coker)

13. Tentative Millage Rates (Beth Carsten — Finance Director)

COMMENTS FROM DEPARTMENTS
14. City Marshal
15. City Attorney
16. Finance Director
17. City Administrator

PUBLIC (Please limit presentation to three minutes)
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS
ADJOURN

NOTE: Any party desiring a verbatim record of the proceedings of this hearing for the purpose of appeal is
advised to make private arrangements therefore.

PLEASE TURN OFF OR SILENCE ALL CELL PHONES
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Finance
SUBJECT: Audit Presentation by Daniel Anderson, Mauldin and Jenkins

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to accept Audit as presented.

SUMMARY: Attached is audit. As soon as Auditor produces his overview of presentation, staff will
forward to Council.

FISCAL IMPACT: () Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other
ATTACHMENTS: () Ordinance () Resolution ()Budget (X)Other
Department Head: Beth Carsten “Yor Date: 7—316
Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:
City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:
City Administrator: @r Date: 7~&-/(
COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended ( ) Disapproved

() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain () Approved with Modifications
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AULDIN
& JENKINS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor, City Council
and City Administrator
City of Arcadia, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Arcadia,
Florida (the “City”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

1401 MANATEE AVENUE WEST, SUITE 1200 - BRADENTON, FLORIDA 34205-7440 « 941-747-4483 « 855-891-0070 « FAX 941-747-6035
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS + WWW.MJCPA.COM



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note C, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, as well as Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, as of October
1,2014. These standards significantly changed the accounting for the City’s net pension liability
and the related disclosures. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the table of
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.



Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining fund financial statements
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining fund financial statements and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund financial
statements and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 27,
2016, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal

control over financial reporting and compliance.
/ %Ma&//m ?%»W, FLC

Bradenton, Florida
June 27, 2016
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

The City of Arcadia, Florida's (the "City") discussion and analysis is designed to: (a) assist the
reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the City's financial
activity, (c) identify changes in the City's financial position (its ability to address the next and
subsequent year challenges), (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the
approved budget), and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the
City's financial statements (beginning on page 17).

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent
with the current year presentation.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2015, by $28,436,569 (net
position). Of this amount, $6,477,915 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the
City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e As of September 30, 2015, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $5,595,746, for an increase of $248,593 in comparison with the prior
year. Of this amount, $1,551,246 is available for spending at the City's discretion
(unassigned fund balance).

e The City’s total net position increased $2,183,730. Net position for governmental
activities increased $962,295, while net position for business-type activities increased
$1,221,435.

e Total debt for the City decreased $463,356 or 5.78% during the current fiscal year as a
result of typical annual required principal payments.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The financial statement's focus is on both the City as a whole (government-wide) and on the
major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to
government) and enhance the City's accountability.

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial
statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.




CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The focus is on
"activities," rather than "fund types."

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. The focus of the Statement of Net
Position is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the City and its governmental and
business-type activities. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. This
statement combines and consolidates governmental fund current resources (short-term spendable
resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing the City's change in net position
during the most recent fiscal year, focusing on both the gross and net costs of various activities,
both governmental and business-type, that are supported by the government's general tax and
other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of the cost of
various governmental services and/or subsidy to various business-type activities.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes, licenses and permits, and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The Governmental
Activities reflect the City's basic service, including police, fire, highways and streets, sanitation,
and parks and recreation. Property taxes, sales and use taxes, utility services, and gas taxes
finance the majority of these services. The Business-type Activities reflect private sector type
operations such as water and sewer services and the airport, where the fee for service typically
covers all or most of the cost of operation including depreciation.

The government-wide financial statements include only the City (known as the primary
government). There are no component units.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 to 18 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a self-balancing set of accounts that is used to maintain control over the resources that

have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related




CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be grouped into three (3) categories: (1)
governmental funds, (2) proprietary funds, and (3) fiduciary funds. Traditional users of
governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statements presentation more
familiar. The focus is now on major funds, rather than fund types.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in the evaluation of the City's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near-term
financing decisions. Because of the different measurement focus (current financial resources
versus total economic resources) a reconciliation of both the governmental fund Balance Sheet
and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
is provided (see pages 19 and 21) to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities. The flow of current financial resources reflects debt proceeds and the
sale of capital assets as other financing sources, and capital outlays and debt principal payments
as expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital
assets and long-term obligations (debt and others) into the governmental activities column (in the
government-wide statements).

The City maintains six (6) individual governmental funds, three (3) proprietary funds and two (2)
fiduciary funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and
in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
for the General Fund, McSwain Park Fund, and Community Development Block Grant Fund
which are considered major funds. Data from the other three (3) governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in this report, immediately
following the required supplementary information.

For fiscal year 2014-2015, the City adopted annual appropriated budgets for the General Fund,
McSwain Park Fund, Community Development Block Grant Fund, Capital Improvement Fund,
Water and Sewer Fund, Solid Waste Fund, and Airport Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule
has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 and 20 of this report.




CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains only one (1) of the two (2) proprietary fund types.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City reports three (3) enterprise funds to account for
its public utilities system and airport. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among a government's various functions. The City does
not utilize internal service funds.

The proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 to 24 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the City (e.g., pension beneficiaries). The City uses fiduciary funds to account for
the two (2) pension trust funds for the Police Officers' and Firefighters' Retirement System and
Employees’ Retirement Plan. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 to 29 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes can be found starting on page 29 of this report.

Infrastructure Assets. Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure-roads,
bridges, traffic signals, under ground pipes not associated with a utility, etc.) had not been
reported nor depreciated in governmental financial statements. Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 34 required that these assets be valued and reported within the
governmental column of the government-wide statements. The City has elected to depreciate its
infrastructure assets.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. The City's assets exceeded liabilities by $28,436,569 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year.




CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

Table 1
City of Arcadia's Net Position

City of Arcadia’s Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current and other

assets S 5890098 § 5,707,326 $ 5922054 § 4,711,551 $ 11,812,152 § 10,418,877
Capilal assets 5,505,324 4,915,482 21,521,595 21,905,998 27,026,919 26,821,480
Total assets 11,395,422 10,622,808 27,443,649 26,617,549 38,839,071 37,240,357
Deferred outflows

of resources 535073 381,020 398,570 378,357 933,643 759,377
Other liabilitics 149,352 725,754 606,897 634,006 756,249 1,359,760
Long-term liabilities 2,212,103 1,671,329 8,367,793 8,715,806 10,579,896 10,387,135
Total liabilities 2,361,455 2,397,083 8,974,690 9,349,812 11,336,145 11,746,895
Net position:
Net investmert

in capital assets 5,505,324 4,915,482 13,974,297 13,895,344 19,479,621 18,810,826
Restricted 1,695,513 1,738,235 783,520 768,520 2,479,033 2,506,755
Unrestricted 2,368,203 1,953,028 4,109,712 2,982,230 6,477,915 4,935,258
Total net position ] 9,569,040 $ 8,606,745 $ 18,867,529 $ 17,646,094 S 28,436,569 § 26,252,839

By far, the largest portion of the City's net position (69%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, building, infrastructure, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the City's net position, $2,479,033, represents resources that are subject to external
restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position,
$6,477,915, may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all categories
of net position for governmental activities.

For more detailed information see the Statement of Net Position (page 17).




CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

Normal Impacts

There are six (6) basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of
Net Position summary presentation.

Net Results of Activities — will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net
position.

Borrowing for Capital — will increase current assets and long-term debt.

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital — will reduce current assets and increase capital
assets. An increase in capital assets and an increase in related net debt will not change the net
investment in capital assets.

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital — will reduce current assets and
increase capital assets, and reduce unrestricted net position and increase the net investment in
capital assets.

Principal Payment on Debt — will: (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt, and (b)
reduce unrestricted net position and increase the net investment in capital assets.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation — will reduce capital assets and the net
investment in capital assets.

10



CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

Revenues:

Program revenues
Charges fo- services
Capital grants

General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Franchise fees
Intergovernmental
Other

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Water and sewer
Airport
Solid Waste

Total expenses

Change in ne! position before
transfers

Transfers
Change in net position

Net position, beginning, as restated
Net position, ending

Table 2
City of Arcadia's
Changes in Net Position

City of Arcadia’s Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
986,543 S 1,421,589 s 5,075,962 $ 4,906,804 $ 6,062,505 s 6,328,393
685,898 114,249 698,091 1,612,522 1,383,989 1,726,771
1,519,742 1,479,227 - - 1,519,742 1,479,227
1,547,837 1,530,478 - - 1,547,837 1,530,478
457,200 436,729 - - 457,200 436,729
544 887 514,076 - - 544 887 514,076
12,381 10,829 14,640 85,896 27,021 96,725
5,754,488 5,507,177 5,788,693 6,605,222 11,543,181 12,112,399
1,156,176 1,045,522 - - 1,156,176 1,045,522
1,976,697 2,107,420 . - 1,976,697 2,107,420
624,718 435,679 - - 624,718 435,679
931,241 811,126 - - 931,241 811,126
103,361 110,438 - . 103,361 110,438
- - 3,384,138 2,890,004 3,384,138 2,890,004
- - 783,570 823,587 783,570 823,587
- - 399,550 251,999 399,550 251,999
4,792,193 4,510,185 4,567,258 3,965,590 9,359,451 8,475,775
962,295 996,992 1,221,435 2,639,632 2,183,730 3,636,624
- (173,213) - 173,213 - -
962,295 823,779 1,221,435 2,812,845 2,183,730 3,636,624
8,606,745 7,782,966 17,646,094 14,833,249 26,252,839 22,616,215
9,569,040 $ 8,606,745 $ 18,867,529 $ 17,646,094 $ 28,436,569 S 26,252,839
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)
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Financial Analysis of the City's Funds — As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of the City's governmental funds, as noted, is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a City's net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $5,595,746, an increase of $248,593 in comparison
with the prior year. Approximately 28% of this total amount, $1,551,246, constitutes unassigned
fund balance which is available for spending at the City's discretion. During the current fiscal
vear, the fund balance of the General Fund increased by $114,872.

Nonmajor governmental funds consisting of special revenue funds and capital project funds have
a combined fund balance of $3,583,136 of which all of it is restricted or assigned.




CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

Proprietary Funds — The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to
$3,794,424; and the increase in total net position was $1,270,269. The City increased water
utility rates and late fees in November 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, in an effort to rebuild net
position in this fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights — The City did amend the 2014-2015 budget during the
year. Overall, General Fund expenditures were less than budgeted appropriations by $332,840.
More detailed information can be found in the General Fund Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual on page 65.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets — The City's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2015, amount to $27,026,919 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements other than buildings, equipment,
infrastructure, and construction in progress.

City of Arcadia’s Capital Assets

(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Activitics Business-type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Land S 1,334,812  § 1,334,812 § 380,778 $ 380,778 § 1,715,590 § 1,715,590
Construction n progress 108,770 - 9,498,844 8,926,677 9,607,614 8,926,677
Buildings 901,541 948,021 1,882,528 2,134,979 2,784,069 3,083,000
Improvements other
than buildings 1,079,986 444,699 799,517 860,744 1,879,503 1,305,443
Infrastructure 1,934,053 2,031,368 8,193,104 8,606,395 10,127,157 10,637,763
Machinery and .
equipment 146,162 156,582 766,824 996,425 912,986 1,153,007
Total S 5,505,324  § 4915482 § 21,521,595 § 21,905998 S 27026919 § 26,821,480

Construction continued on the water treatment plant improvements during the year. Additional
information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note E of the notes to the basic financial
statements.

14



CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
(UNAUDITED)

Long-term Debt — At the end of the 2015 fiscal year, the City had debt outstanding of
$7,547,298.

Table 4
City of Arcadia’s Outstanding Debt

Business-type

Activities
2015 2014
Bonds payable $ 2,268,502 $ 2,596,325
State Revolving Fund loan payable 4,638,238 4,534,913
Capital lease payable 640,558 879,416

$ 7,547,298 § 8,010,654

Debt balances increased for the State Revolving Fund loan payable which is being used for
construction of the new water treatment plant. Bonds payable and capital leases payable
decreased due to regularly scheduled amortization payments.

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note F of the notes to the
basic financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

For fiscal year 2014-2015, the City’s property tax values increased slightly. The economic
environment in the City of Arcadia is such that property values have remained generally
stagnant, yet costs and the CPI have increased slightly. The City adopted a millage rate of
8.8195 which was the same millage rate adopted in fiscal year 2013-14. The City is making
efforts to increase fund balance in the General Fund; however, increases in pension contributions
and other expenditures have had a significant impact on the City’s ability to do so.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s financial condition and to demonstrate the City's
accountability. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional financial information should be addressed to the City of Arcadia, Finance Director,
P.O. Box 1000, Arcadia, Florida 34265.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,155,481 §$ 4,295,808 $ 9,451,289
Accounts receivable, net of allowances 289,473 501,320 790,793
Due from other governments 138,680 256,200 394,880
Internal balances 306,464 (306,464) -
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,175,190 1,175,190
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 1,443,582 9,879,622 11,323,204
Depreciable, net 4,061,742 11,641,973 15,703,715
Total assets 11,395,422 27,443,649 38,839,071
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - pensions 535,073 83,273 618,346
Deferred charges on refundings - 315,297 315,297
Total deferred outflows or resources 535,073 398,570 933,643
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 13,773 166,989 180,762
Accrued liabilities 135,579 78,411 213,990
Customer deposits payable - 361,497 361,497
Other noncurrent liability - OPEB 513,293 216,122 729,415
Net pension liability 1,466,664 446,051 1,912,715
Capital leases due within one year - 244,109 244,109
Capital leases due in more than one year - 396,449 396,449
Notes payable due in more than one year - 4,638,238 4,638,238
Bonds payable due within one year - 345,000 345,000
Bonds payable due in more than one year - 1,923,502 1,923,502
Compensated absences due within one year 80,970 44,010 124,980
Compensated absences due
in more than one year 151,176 114,312 265,488
Total liabilities 2,361,455 8,974,690 11,336,145
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,505,324 13,974,297 19,479,621
Restricted for debt service - 783,520 783,520
Restricted for capital projects 1,695,513 - 1,695,513
Unrestricted 2,368,203 4,109,712 6,477,915
Total net position $ 9,569,040 $ 18,867,529 $ 28,436,569

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues Primary Government
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmenta! activities:
General government $ 1,156,176 $ 577,175 § - 3 - 3 (579,001) % - 3 (579,001)
Public safety 1,976,697 59,838 - 41,206 (1,875,653) - (1,875,653)
Physical environment 103.361 2,363 - - (100,998) - (100,998)
Transportation 624,718 66,613 - 644,692 86,587 - 86,587
Culture and recreation 931,241 280,554 - - (650,687) - (650,687)
Total governmental activities 4,792,193 986,543 - 685,898 (3,119,752) - (3,119,752)
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer 3,384,138 4,201,071 - 439,655 - 1,256,588 1,256,588
Solid Waste 783.570 805,350 - - - 21,780 21,780
Airport 399,550 69,541 - 258,436 - (71,573) (71,573)
Total business-type activities 4,567,258 5,075,962 - 698,091 - 1,206,795 1,206,795
Total primary government $ 9,359,451 § 6,062,505 3 - 3 1,383,989 (3,119,752) 1,206,795 (1,912,957)
General revenues:
Property taxes 1,519,742 - 1,519,742
Local option gas tax 266,658 - 266,658
Infrastructure tax 496,023 - 496,023
Public service taxes 520,798 - 520,798
Communications services taxes 216,067 - 216,067
Business license taxes 48,291 - 48,291
Franchise fees 457,200 - 457,200
Intergovernmental, unrestricted 544,887 - 544,887
Unrestricted investment earnings 12,381 14,640 27,021
Total general revenues 4,082,047 14,640 4,096,687
Change in net position 962,295 1,221,435 2,183,730
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 8,606,745 17,646,094 26,252,839
Net position, end of year 3 9569040 § 18,867,529 $ 28,436,569

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Other Totals
McSwain Governmental Governmental
General Park CDBG Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,162,180 $ 461,364 $ 1,800 $ 3,530,137 $ 5,155,481
Accounts receivable, net 289,473 - - - 289,473
Due from other governments 85,681 - - 52,999 138,680
Due from other funds 317,799 - - - 317,799
Total assets $ 1,855,133 § 461,364 § 1,800 § 3,583,136 $ 5,901,433
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 13,773 § - 3 - 3 S 13,773
Accrued liabilities 135,579 - - - 135,579
Due to other funds 9,535 - 1,800 - 11,335
Total liabilities 158,887 - 1,800 - 160,687
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - restitution 145,000 - - - 145,000
Total deferred inflows of resources 145,000 - - - 145,000
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Transportation - - - 1,234,149 1,234,149
Parks and recreation - 461,364 - - 461,364
Assigned for:
Special projects - - - 1,161,282 1,161,282
Capital projects - - - 1,187,705 1,187,705
Unassigned 1,551,246 - - - 1,551,246
Total fund balances 1,551,246 461,364 - 3,583,136 5,595,746
Total liabilitics, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 1,855,133 $ 461,364 $ 1,800 $ 3,583,136
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Capital ass2ts $ 11,417,645
Less accumulated depreciation (5,912,321) 5,505,324
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 145,000
Deferred outflows and the net pension liability related to the City's pension plans are not expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources and, therefore are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows - pensions 535,073
Net pension liability (1,466,664) (931,591)
Centain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are therefore not reported in the funds.
Compensated absences (232,146)
Other post-employment benefits (513,293) (745,439)
Net position of zovernmental activities $ 9,569,040

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Other Totals
McSwain Governmental Governmental
General Park CDBG Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,571,557  $ - 3 - 3 496,023 $ 3,067,580
Charges for services 374,052 - - - 374,052
Permits, fees anc assessments 707,746 - - - 707,746
Intergovernmental 586,093 - 644,692 - 1,230,785
Fines and forfeitures 59,838 - - - 59,838
Interest revenue 2,610 - - 9,771 12,381
Other revenues 302,106 - - - 302,106
Total revenues 4,604,002 - 644,692 505,794 5,754,488
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govemment 1,008,736 - - - 1,008,736
Public safety 2,109,132 - - - 2,109,132
Economic environment 55,043 - 778,858 - 833,901
Transportation 396,529 - - - 396,529
Parks and recreation 799,482 83,362 - - 882,844
Capital outlay 9,024 - - 265,729 274,753
Total expenditures 4,377,946 83,362 778,858 265,729 5,505,895
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 226,056 (83,362) (134,166) 240,065 248,593
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 15,408 44,726 126,592 - 186,726
Transfers out (126,592) - - (60,134) (186,726)
Total other financing sources (uses) (111,184) 44,726 126,592 (60,134) -
Net change in fund balances 114,872 (38,636) (7,574) 179,931 248,593
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,436,374 500,000 7,574 3,403,205 5,347,153
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,551,246 § 461,364 $ - 3 3,583,136 $ 5,595,746

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmenta! funds 248,593
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay expenditures $ 892,060

Less current year depreciation expense (302,218) 589,842
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Pension expense $ 174,263

Change in OPEB liability (2,712)

Change in compensated absences (47,691) 123,860

962,295

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Airport
Water and Selid Fund
Sewer Fund Waste Fund (Nonmajor) Totals
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,938,091 $ 344658 $ 13,059 $ 4,295,808
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:
2003 refunding bonds, sinking fund 376,173 - - 376,173
Customer deposits 360,497 - - 360,497
Accounts receivaole, net of allowances 434,278 67,042 - 501,320
Due from other governments - - 256,200 256,200
Due from other funds 1,593 - 9,535 11,128
Total current assets 5,110,632 411,700 278,794 5,801,126
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted assets, cash - 2003 refunding bonds, reserve funds 438,520 - - 438,520
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 9,645,967 - 233,655 9,879,622
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 9,742,746 326,995 1,572,232 11,641,973
Total noncurrent assets 19,827,233 326,995 1,805,887 21,960,115
Total assets 24,937,865 738,695 2,084,681 27,761,241
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - pensions 75,412 7,861 - 83,273
Deferred charges on refundings 315,297 - - 315,297
Total deferred outflows of resources 390,709 7,861 - 398,570
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 133,905 26,303 3,862 164,070
Accrued liabilities 33,445 9,336 - 42,781
Accrued interest - 4,457 - 4,457
Retainage payabiz 2919 - - 2,919
Current portion - compensated absences 39,609 4,401 - 44,010
Current portion - capital leases payable 176,629 67,480 - 244,109
Due to other funcs 100,946 88,129 128,517 317,592
Payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 360,497 - 1,000 361,497
Accrued interest 31,173 - - 31,173
Bonds payable, current portion 345,000 - - 345,000
Total current liabilities 1,224,123 200,106 133,379 1,557,608
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Compensated absences, net of current portion 102,391 11,921 - 114,312
Revenue bonds payable, net of current portion 1,923,502 - - 1,923,502
Capital leases payable, net of current portion 180,986 215,463 - 396,449
Notes payable, net of current portion 4,638,238 - - 4,638,238
Net pension liability 403,946 42,105 - 446,051
Net OPEB liability 153,086 63,036 - 216,122
Total noncurrent liabilities 7,402,149 332,525 - 7,734,674
Total liabilities 8,626,272 532,631 133,379 9,292,282
NET POSITION
Net investment ir. capital assets 12,124,358 44,052 1,805,887 13,974,297
Restricted for debt service 783,520 - - 783,520
Unrestricted 3,794,424 169,873 145,415 4,109,712
Total net position $ 16702302 $ 213925 $ 1951,302 $ 18,867,529

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Airport
Water and Solid Fund
Sewer Fund Waste Fund (Nonmajor) Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 3999978 § 805350 §$ 67,566 4,872,894
Tap and capacity recovery fees 44,012 - - 44,012
Other services 157,081 - 1,975 159,056
Total operating revenues 4,201,071 805,350 69,541 5,075,962
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 978,034 264,756 - 1,242,790
Operating expenses 1,475,714 383,770 306,351 2,165,835
Depreciation 753,380 125,101 93,199 971,680
Total operating expenses 3,207,128 773,627 399,550 4,380,305
Operating income (loss) 993,943 31,723 (330,009) 695,657
NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmentzl - - 258,436 258,436
Interest income 13,681 959 - 14,640
Interest expense (177,010) (9,943) - (186,953)
Total nonoperating income (expenses) (163,329) (8,984) 258,436 86,123
Income (lcss) before contributions 830,614 22,739 (71,573) 781,780
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 439,655 - - 439,655
Change in net position 1,270,269 22,739 (71,573) 1,221,435
NET POSITION, beginning of year, as restated 15,432,033 191,186 2,022,875 17,646,094
NET POSITION, end of year $ 16702302 § 213925 $ 1,951,302 18,867,529

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Airport
Water and Solid Fund
Sewer Fund Waste Fund (Nonmajor) Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 4,360,041 $ 826,149 $ (51,171) § 5,135,019
Payments to suppliers (1,506,304) (381,368) (302,489) (2,190,161)
Payments to employees (953,639) (255,709) - (1,209,348)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,900,098 189,072 (353,660) 1,735,510
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental grant - - 258,436 258,436
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities - - 258,436 258,436
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (483,952) - - (483,952)
Principal paid on bonds (330,000) - - (330,000)
Principal paid on notes payable and capital leases (173,438) (65,420) - (238,858)
Capital contributions 439,655 - - 439,655
Interest paid (115,898) (10,973) - (126,871)
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities (663,633) (76,393) - (740,026)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividands received 13,681 959 - 14,640
Net cash provided by investing activities 13,681 959 - 14,640
Change in cash and cash equivalents 1,250,146 113,638 (95,224) 1,268,560
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 3,863,135 231,020 108,283 4,202,438
End of year $ 5113281 $ 344658 $ 13059 $ 5,470,998
Classified as:
Cash and cash ecuivalents $ 3,938,091 $ 344,658 $ 13,059 $ 4,295,808
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, sinking fund 376,173 - - 376,173
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, customer deposits 360,497 - - 360,497
Restricted cash, reserve funds 438,520 - - 438,520
$ 5113281 $ 344658 $ 13059 § 5470998
(Centinued)
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Airport
Water and Solid Fund
Sewer Fund Waste Fund (Nonmajor) Totals

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income: (loss) $ 993,943 $ 31,723 $ (330,009) $ 695,657
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used 1n) by operating activities:

Depreciation 753,380 125,101 93,199 971,680
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrzase in accounts receivable (52,115) 18,648 4,854 (28,613)
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments 186,002 - (253,545) (67,543)
Decrease in dus from other funds - 2,151 55 2,206
(Increase) in deferred outflows - pensions (75,412) (7,861) - (83,273)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (113,822) 2,402 3,862 (107,558)
Increase in accrued liabilities 42,876 10,641 - 53,517
Increase in customer deposits 82,424 - 1,000 83,424
Increase in net pension liability 56,931 5,934 - 62,865
Increase in OPEB 808 333 - 1,141
Increase in due to other funds 25,083 - 126,924 152,007
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 1,900,098 $ 189,072 $ (353,660) $ 1,735,510

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Capitalized interest
Net noncash investing, capital, and financing activities

A

103,325  § - 8 - 3 103,325
103,325 § - 8 $ 103,325

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ASSETS
Contributions receivable
Interest and dividends receivable
Investments
Money merket funds
U.S. Government and agencies
Mortgage backed securities
Corporate bonds
Corporate stocks
Immediate participation guarantee contracts
Pooled investments
Total investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Total liabilities
NET POSITION

Net position restricted for
Pension benefits

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Pension
Trust Funds

5 96,763
18,676

181,480
1,214,296
884,176
1,430,656
4,881,951
893,762
1,350,610

10,836,931

10,952,370

10,674

10,674

$ 10,941,696




CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Pension
Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 436,982
Plan members 99,023
State of Florida 202,172
Total contributions 738,177
Investment income
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (1,281,542)
Realized gain on sale of investments 950,422
Interest and dividends 360,439
Total investment income 29,319
Less investment expenses 116,987
Net investment income (87,668)
Total additions 650,509
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 664,412
Administrative expenses 43,558
Refund of contributions 15,813
Total deductions 723,783
Change in net position (73,274)
Net position restricted for pension benefits
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 11,014,970
Net position, end of year $ 10,941,696

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Arcadia, Florida (the “City”), have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted (GAAP) in the United States of America as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles.

1. The Financial Reporting Entity

The City began as a small ranching and farming settlement on the bluff overlooking the Peace River
in 1883. The City was first chartered in 1886 and became the County Seat of DeSoto County in 1888.
It was granted its present Charter in 1901, established under the 1901 Laws of Florida, Chapter 5080.
It is located in Central Florida near the intersection of U.S. Highway 17 and State Road 70, and is
comprised of approximately 4.1 square miles with a population of approximately 7,600. The City
operates under an elected Council (five members rotate as Mayor), administrative/legislative form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: police and fire protection,
emergency medical services, waste collection, parks and recreation, certain social services, and
general administration. In addition, the City owns and operates a water system and sewer system. Fire
services are contracted with Desoto County.

In accordance with the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards,
the accompanying financial statements include all funds for which the City is financially accountable.
The City has also considered all other potential organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationships with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining
financial accountability. A primary government is considered financially accountable if it appoints a
voting majority of an organization’s governing body and is able to impose its will on that
organization. The primary government may also be financially accountable if an organization is
fiscally dependent on the primary government and a financial benefit or burden relationship exists,
regardless of the authority of the organization’s governing board. Based on these criteria, there are no
other organizations or agencies which should be included in these basic financial statements.

The Arcadia Housing Authority (AHA) was created by Chapter 421 of the Florida Statutes, 1941, as
amended by Chapter 21697 and 21699, Laws of 1943, and approved May 11, 1943. The City and the
AHA entered into a cooperative agreement on March 19, 1962. The City Council has the
responsibility of ratifying the appointment of AHA Board members. The City's accountability for this
organization does not extend beyond this role.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or
segment; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though
the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the current fiscal period, with the exception of grant revenues, which are considered available
when eligible expenditures have been incurred even though they may be collected beyond 60 days.
Property taxes, gas taxes, utility taxes, franchise fees, intergovernmental revenues, and interest
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual.

Permits and assessments, fines and forfeitures, charges for services (other than utility), and

miscellaneous revenues are generally recorded as revenue when received in cash, because they are
generally not measurable until actually received.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property taxes are recognized as revenue at the time an enforceable legal claim is established. This is
determined to occur November 1 of each year. The assessment roll is validated July 1, and the millage
resolution is approved by September 30. The City's property taxes become a lien on October 1, and
the tax is levied by DeSoto County each November 1, for real and personal property located in the
City. Property taxes are due before April 1, with the maximum discount available if payment is made
on or before November 30. If payments remain delinquent, a tax certificate for the full amount of any
unpaid taxes is sold no later than June 1. Under this arrangement, there are no property tax receivables
at the end of the fiscal year on September 30.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The McSwain Park Fund is used to account for the receipt, custody and expenditure of grants and
other funds used for the restoration of McSwain Park.

The CDBG Fund is used to account for the receipt, custody and expenditure of Community
Development Block Grant funds.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the activities associated with providing water and sewer
services to residents of the City. The City operates a sewage treatment plant, sewage pumping
stations and collection systems, and a water treatment and distribution system.

The Solid Waste Fund accounts for the activities associated with providing solid waste services to
residents of the City.

Additionally, the government reports the following fiduciary fund type:

The pension trust funds account for the activities of the City's retirement plans which accumulate
resources for pension benefit payments made to qualified pension employees.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and other charges
between the government's enterprise funds and various other functions of the government. Elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

4. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Fund Balance

(a) Deposits and investments

The City maintains a pooled cash account that is available for use by all funds, except the
pension trust funds. Each fund's portion of this pool is presented as "Pooled cash and cash
equivalents”" in the financial statements. Interest income earned as a result of pooling is
distributed monthly to the appropriate funds based on average daily balances.

In addition, non-pooled cash and cash equivalents are separately held by several of the City's
funds. The government's non-pooled cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on
hand, demand deposits, interest-bearing time deposits, and deposits in the Local Government
Surplus Trust Fund Investment Pool administered by the Florida State Board of
Administration. Investments are held only in the pension trust funds and consist of short-term
investments and marketable securities reported at fair value based on quoted market prices
except for immediate participation guarantee contracts (IPG). Securities traded on a national
or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales quote at current exchange rates.
Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value based
on market indicators regarded as measures of equity or fixed income performance results. The
estimated fair value of IPG investments are based on valuations provided by external
investment managers. Management believes the carrying amount of these financial
instruments is a reasonable estimate of fair value. Because the IPG investments are not readily
marketable, their estimated value is subject to uncertainty and therefore may differ from the
value that would have been used had a ready market for such investments existed..

Florida Statutes require state and local governmental units to deposit monies with financial
institutions classified as "Qualified Public Depositories,” a multiple financial institution pool
whereby groups of securities pledged by the various financial institutions provide common
collateral for their deposits of public funds.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
4. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued)

This pool is provided as additional insurance to the Federal depository insurance and allows
for additional assessments against the member institutions providing full insurance for public
deposits. The City had deposits only with qualifying institutions as of September 30, 2015.

(b) Receivables and payables

Outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.. the non-current portion of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal
balances."

Unbilled service receivables represent the estimated amount of accounts receivable for
services that have not yet been billed. The amount represents a timing difference between the
end of the financial statement cycle (month end) and the billing cycle (varying dates each
billing period). All receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The
accounts receivable in excess of 90 days for water, sewer, garbage, and utility tax revenues
comprises the allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of
September 30, 2015, was $784,319 in the Water and Sewer Fund and $123,568 in the Solid
Waste Fund.

(c) Restricted assets

Certain proceeds of the City's state revolving fund loans in the enterprise fund, as well as
certain resources set aside for their repayment and the repayment of the refunding bonds, are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate
bank accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. In addition, customer
deposits being held for water and sewer utility accounts are restricted.

(d) Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset life are not
capitalized. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
4. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued)
(d) Capital assets (continued)

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 15-40
Water and sewer systems 15-40
Public domain infrastructure 15-40
Improvements 10-15
Equipment 5-10

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of enterprise funds is included
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. Interest in the amount of $103,325
was capitalized for fiscal year ending September 30, 2015.

(e) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then. The deferred charges on refunding debt qualifies for reporting in this category.

The Clty has deferred inflows and deferred outflows related to the recording of changes in its
net pension liability. Certain changes in the net pens1on liability are recognized as pensxon
expense over time instead of all being recognized in the year of occurrence. Experience gams
or losses result from periodic studies by the City’s actuary which adjust the net pension
liability for actual experience for certain trend information that was prev10usly assumed, for
example the assumed dates of retirement of plan members. These experience gains or losses
are recorded as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources and are
amortized into pension expense over the expected remammg service life of plan members.

Changes in actuarial assumptions which adjust the net pension liability are also recorded as
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources and are amortized into pension
expense over the expected remaining lives of plan members. The difference between projected
investment return on pension investments and actual return on those investments is also
deferred and amortized against pension expense over a five year period. The changes in
proportion and differences between City contributions and proportionate share of
contributions are also deferred and amortized against pension expense over a five year period.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
4. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued)

(e) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

Additionally, any contributions made by the City to the pension plan before year end but
subsequent to the measurement date of the City’s net pension liability are reported as deferred

outflows of resources.

In addition to the above pension related deferred inflows, the City also has one other type of
these items, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for
reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from
certain charges for services and fines and these amounts are deferred and will be recognized as

an inflow of resources in the period in which the amounts become available.

(f) Compensated absences

Accumulated unpaid vacation time and sick time amounts, including the related direct and
incremental salary related payments, are accrued in the enterprise fund and appear as increases
in salary expenses. In governmental funds, these costs are recognized when payments are
made to employees or when the costs mature as a result of employee resignation or retirement.
All vacation and sick pay is accrued when earned in the government-wide financial

statements.

(g)Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities and business-type activities.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or

discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued and premiums are
reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds

received, are reported as debt service expenditures when incurred.
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NOTE A —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
4. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued)
(h) Fund equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance.”
Fund equity for all other reporting is classified as “net position.”

Fund Balance-Generally, fund balance represents the difference between current assets and
current liabilities. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is
bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be
spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:

Non-spendable-Fund balances are reported as non-spendable when amounts cannot
be spent because they are either: (a) not in spendable form (i.e. items that are not
expected to be converted to cash such as prepaid items and advances to other funds),
or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted—Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed
on their use either through enabling legislation or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed—Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council
through the adoption of a resolution or ordinance. Only the City Council may modify
or rescind the commitment. These self-imposed limitations must be set in place prior
to the end of the fiscal year.

Assigned-Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by
the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor
committed. Intent is stipulated by the City Council or an official for whom that
authority has been given by City Council. With the exception of the General Fund,
amounts in all other governmental funds that are not non-spendable, restricted or
committed will be considered to be assigned. Also, at fiscal year-end, any
appropriation of existing fund balance to eliminate a projected budgetary deficit in the
next year’s budget is considered to be an assignment of fund balance.
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4. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued)

(h) Fund equity

Pursuant to Florida Statute 212.055 and Resolution 2009-11, the City Council
authorized the expenditure of infrastructure surtax proceeds and interest for any public
purpose deemed necessary by the City Council. Since the expenditure of these funds is
stipulated by City Council, these funds are reported as assigned. Since there is no
specific purpose for the expenditure of these funds identified in the resolution, these
funds do not qualify as committed funds.

Unassigned—Fund balances reported as unassigned are the residual amount of balances
that do not meet any of the above criteria. The City reports positive unassigned fund
balance only in the General Fund. Negative unassigned fund balance may be reported
in other governmental funds.

Net Position-Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. The net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. The net investment in capital assets excludes unspent debt
proceeds. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on use
either through enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. All net position not reported as net
investment in capital assets or restricted net position, is reported as unrestricted net position.

Flow Assumptions-When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance/net
positon are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.

For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City’s policy to use fund balance in the
following order:

o Committed

o Assigned
¢ Unassigned

37



CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
4. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Fund Balance (Continued)
(i) Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the City’s plans and additions to/deductions from these plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

5. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as applied to governmental units requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from the estimates.

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted for the General Fund, Infrastructure Fund, Street Reserve Fund,
Community Development Block Grant Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Water and Sewer Fund, and
Airport Fund. The enterprise fund budget is prepared on a basis similar to the budgets for
governmental type funds. All budgets presented are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), except that capital outlays,
rather than depreciation expense, is treated as an expense in the year budgeted for the enterprise funds.

No later than two months prior to the end of the fiscal year, the City Administrator submits to the City
Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing October 1. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them by fund. The Council holds public
hearings to obtain taxpayer comments and a final budget must be prepared and adopted by October 1,
through the passage of a resolution.
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The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City Administrator has the
authority to make line item transfers within departmental budgets with all such adjustments reported
to the City Council. Transfers of appropriations between departments and changes in total budget
appropriations for a fund require the approval of the City Council. The legal level of budgetary control
(i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department level for
the General Fund, and the fund level for all other funds. The City Council retains the right to amend
the budget as necessary throughout the course of the year.

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the following departments reported expenditures in excess of
budget appropriations in the General Fund:

Law enforcement 18,270
Cemetery 2,880
Roads and streets 2,728
Golf Course 1,341

Although positive budget variances for revenues and expenditures reported in other departments more
than offsct these negative budget variances, expenditures in excess of appropriations is a budgetary
violation.

Budget amounts in the accompanying financial statements are as originally adopted, or as amended by
the appropriate authority.

NOTE C - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

The City has determined that a restatement to the October 1, 2014, beginning net position was
required to recognize the change in accounting principle for implementation of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, as well as Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 68, as of October 1, 2014, through which accounting for pension plans and
the related disclosure requirements were modified. This adjustment resulted in a change to the
beginning net position of the City as follows:

Beginning net position, Governmental Activities, previously reported $ 9,701,029
Implementation of GASB 68 (1,094,284)
Beginning net position, Governmental Activities, as restated $ 8,606,745
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Beginning net position, Business-type Activities, previously reported $ 18,029,280
Implementation of GASB 68 (383,186)
Beginning net position, Business-type Activities, as restated $ 17,646,094
Beginning net position, Water and Sewer Fund, previously reported  § 15,779,048
Implementation of GASB 68 (347,015)
Beginning net position, Water and Sewer Fund, as restated $ 15,432,033
Beginning net position, Solid Waste Fund, previously reported $ 227,357
Implementation of GASB 68 (36,171)
Beginning net position, Solid Waste Fund, as restated $ 191,186

NOTE D - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As of September 30, 2015, the City had the following investments and maturities, which were all held
in the pension trust funds:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

No Fixed Less than More than
Investment Rating Fair Value Maturity 1 year 1-5 years 6-10 years 10 years
Money market funds NR S 181,480 $ S 181480 § - 3 - S
U.S. government and agencies Aaa 1,214,296 90,100 557,084 567,112 -
Morngage backed securities NR 884,176 - - 884,176
Corporate bonds Al-Baa3 1,430,656 - 1,279,791 150,865 -
Corporate stocks NR 4,881,951 4,881,951 - -
IPG contracts NR 893,762 893,762
Pooled investments NR 1,350,610 1,350,610 - - - -
Total S  10,836931 $ 7,126323 § 271,580 $ 1,836,875 $ 717977 § 884,176
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The police officers’ and firefighters’ retirement system investment policy realizes that
reasonable consistency of return and protection of assets against the inroads of inflation are
paramount. However, the volatility of interest rates and security markets makes it necessary to judge
results within the context of several years rather than over short periods.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk results from the potential default of investments that are not financially sound. The City has
not adopted a written investment policy; therefore, the City’s investments are limited in accordance
with Florida Statute 218.415(17) to the Local Government Surplus Trust Fund, or any
intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of
1969; Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit
quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency; interest-bearing time deposits or savings
accounts in qualified public depositories; and direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

The City’s funds in the Local Government Surplus Trust Fund (the “LGIP”), a Securities and
Exchange Commission 2a7-like external investment pool, in the amount of $428,608 is reported at
amortized cost and has a weighted average of 29 days to maturity as of September 30, 2015. The fund
is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.

The police officers’ and firefighters’ retirement system has an investment policy that limits
investments to: (1) time, savings and money market accounts of a national bank, a state bank or a
savings and loan institution, insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, provided the
amount deposited does not exceed the insured amount; (2) obligations issued by the United States
government or obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States or by an agency
of the United States government; (3) stocks, commingled funds administered by national or state
banks, mutual funds and bonds or other evidences of indebtedness, issued or guaranteed by a
corporation organized under the laws of the United States, any state or organized territory of the
United States or the District of Columbia. Equities must be traded on a national exchange; fixed
income securities shall have a minimum rating of investment grade or higher as reported by a major
credit rating service, except securities rated below BBB/Baa shall be limited to 15% of the fixed
income portfolio, and the average quality of the fixed income portfolio must remain A or better; and
money market funds should have a minimum rating of A1 by Standard & Poor’s or P1 by Moody’s.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the quantity of investments in a single
issuer. The police officers’ and firefighters’ retirement system investment policy states that the value
of bonds issued by any single corporation shall not exceed 4% of the total fund, no more than 5% of
the plan assets shall be invested in the common stock or capital stock of any one issuing company, and
the aggregate investment in any one issuing company shall not exceed 5% of the outstanding capital
stock of the company. Additionally, no more than 66% of plan assets at cost or 70% of plan assets at
market value should be invested in corporate common stock and convertible bonds. Foreign securities
shall not exceed 25% of the market value of the plan.
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NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the governmental activities for the year

ended September 30, 2015:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Transfers Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land S 1334812 § - 8 - 8 1,334,812
Construction in progress - 108,770 - 108,770
Total capital assets, not

being depreciated 1,334 812 108,770 - 1,443,582
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 1,811,273 - - 1,811,273
Improvements other than buildings 1,521,850 738,222 - 2,260,072
Infrastructure 3,930,738 - - 3,930,738
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 1,926,912 45,068 - 1,971,980
Total capital assets,

being depreciated 9,190,773 783,290 - 9,974,063
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (863,252) (46,480) - (909,732)
Improvements other than buildings (1,077,151) (102,935) - (1,180,086)
Infrastructure (1,899,370) (97,315) - (1,996,685)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment (1,770,330) (55,488) - (1,825,818)
Total accumulated depreciation (5,610,103) (302,218) - (5,912,321)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 3,580,670 481,072 - 4,061,742
Governmental activities capital

assets, net S 4915482 § 589,842 $ - 8 5,505,324

Depreciation expense was charged to the various functions of governmental activities as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Phyical environment
Culture and recreation
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities
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NOTE E — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the business-type activities for the year
ended September 30, 2015:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance

Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 380,778 $ - S - 8 - 8 380,778
Construction :n progress 8,926,677 572,167 - - 9,498,844
Total capital essets, not

being depreciated 9,307,455 572,167 - - 9,879,622
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 9,489,325 - - - 9,489,325
Improvements other than buildings 1,840,692 - - - 1,840,692
Infrastructure 16,956,064 - - - 16,956,064
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 4,694 087 15,110 - - 4,709,197
Total capital assets, being

depreciated 32,980,168 15,110 - - 32,995,278
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (7,354,346) (252,451) - - (7,606,797)
Improvements other than buildings (979,948) (61,227) - - (1,041,175)
Infrastructure (8,349,669) (413,291) - - (8,762,960)
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment (3,697,662) (244,711) - - (3,942,373)
Total accumulated depreciation (20,381,625) (971,680) - - (21,353,305)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 12,598,543 (956,570) - - 11,641,973
Business-type activities

capital assets, net $ 21,905998 § (384,403) § - $ - 8 21,521,595

Depreciation expense was charged to the various functions of business-type activities as follows:

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer b 753,380
Solid waste 125,101
Airport 93,199
Tota! depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 971,680
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Long-term liability activity for the governmental activities for the year ended September 30, 2015,

consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Compensated absences 3 184,455 $ 127,076 $ (79,385) $ 232,146 $ 80,970
Other post-employment benefits 510,581 103,109 (100,397) 513,293 -
Net pension liability 1,486,874 1,095,653 (1,115,863) 1,466,664 -
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 2,181910 § 1,325,838 § (1,295,645) $ 2,212,103 $ 80,970

Long-term liabilities of the governmental activities, which include compensated absences, other post-
employment benefits, and the net pension obligation, are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

Long-term liability activity for the business-type activities for the year ended September 30, 2015,

consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-type activities:
2003 Refunding bonds $ 2,605,000 $ - $ (330,000) $ 2,275,000 $ 345,000
Less bond discount (8,675) - 2,177 (6,498) -
Total bonds payable 2,596,325 - (327,823) 2,268,502 345,000
State Revolving Fund loan 4,534,913 103,325 - 4,638,238 -
Capital lease payable 879,416 - (238,858) 640,558 244,109
Compensated absences 106,985 94,485 (43,148) 158,322 44,010
Other post-employment benefits 214,981 32,561 (31,420) 216,122 -
Net pension liability 383,186 178,362 (115,497) 446,051 -
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities $ 8,715,806 $ 408,733 $ (756,746) $ 8,367,793 $ 633,119
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The City's long-term liabilities for business-type activities at September 30, 2015, consisted of the
following:

The City issued the Water and Sewer Refunding and Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 2003 to finance the cost of refunding the City's 1993A Pooled
Governmental Unit Note outstanding in the amount of $5,040,000, fund the
required reserve account, finance the cost of expanding an existing reuse
facility, and to pay a portion of the costs of issuance. Interest is payable semi-
annually on June 1 and December 1, at interest rates ranging from 2.75% to
4.35%. The bonds are secured by the net revenues of the City's water and
sewer system. $ 2,275,000

State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan issued in the amount of $4,520,904 of
which $4,407,336 has been drawn down as of September 30, 2015. Principal
and interest will be payable in equal semi-annual instaliments of $152,848
for a period of twenty (20) years with a proposed date of first repayment
starting October 15, 2015, and interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 3.06%.
The principal and interest is secured by net revenues of the water and sewer
system. 4,638,238

Capital leases payable for water meters, a garbage truck, and a vacuum

truck. Principal and interest is payable monthly in installments of $11,773

including interest at 4.3% through October 2016 for the water meter lease.

Principal and interest is payable in annual installments of $76,393 begining

in April 2015 at 3.15% through April 2019 for the garbage truck. Principal

and interest is payable in annual installments of $45,756 begining in October

2015 at 3.20% through October 2019 for the vacuum truck. 640,558

$ 7,553,796
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Annual debt service requirements for the business-type activities (excluding capital leases) as of
September 30, 2015, are as follows:

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 345000 $ 86,836 § 431,836
2017 355,000 73,051 428,051
2018 370,000 58,551 428,551
2019 385,000 43,211 428,211
2020 400,000 26,770 426,770
2021 420,000 9,135 429,135

$ 2275000 § 297,554  $2,572,554

The estimated principal amount of the SRF loan and payment terms have not been finalized, and thus
have not been included in the above schedule. Currently, semi-annual loan payments (principal and
interest) are estimated to be in the amount of $152,848 starting on October 15, 2015, and
semiannually thereafter on October 15 and April 15 for a period of 20 years.

Capital Lease

The City entered into various municipal lease/purchase agreement as lessee for financing the
acquisition of new water meters for the entire City and equipment. The lease agreements qualify as
capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the
future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. The assets acquired through the capital lease
are as follows:

Water and Solid
Sewer Fund Waste Fund
Asset
Improvements other than buildings $ 1,196,296 § -
Equipment 250,000 348,362
Less accumulated depreciation (308,377) (104,509)

$ 1,137919 § 243,853
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The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as
of September 30, 2015, were as follows:

Water and Solid
Year Ending September 30, Sewer Fund Waste Fund
2016 $ 187,028 % 76,393
2017 57,528 76,393
2018 45,756 76,393
2019 45,756 76,393
2020 45,756 -
Total minimum lease payments 381,824 305,572
Less amount representing interest (24,211) (22,627)

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 357613 § 282,945

Rate Covenant

In accordance with the Water and Sewer Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2003,
the City has a covenant to fix, establish, revise from time to time whenever necessary, maintain and
collect such fees, rates, rentals, and other charges for the use of the products, services and facilities of
the water and sewer system which shall provide revenues sufficient to pay: (1) 100% of all cost of
operation and maintenance as the same shall become due in such year, (2) 125% of the bond service
requirement due in such year on the outstanding bonds, and (3) 100% of all other deposits to be made
pursuant to the resolution and all other amounts payable from pledged revenues. For fiscal year
September 30, 2015, the City was in compliance with the debt covenant.

NOTE G - INSURANCE COVERAGE

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City's risk management
program mainly encompasses obtaining property and liability insurance through commercial
insurance carriers. The City has not had any significant reduction in insurance coverage and the
amounts of insurance settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for any of the last three years.
At year-end, the City did not have any significant claims. There were no significant changes in
coverage retention or limits during the fiscal year. The General Fund handles property claims for the
City and absorbs the loss for any amount below the deductible amounts.

The City provides workers’ compensation insurance on its employees through Preferred Government

Claims Solutions. Workers’ compensation premiums are subject to change when audited by Preferred
Government Claims Solutions.
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NOTE H - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The composition of interfund balances at September 30, 2015, is as follows:

Payable Funds
General CDBG Water and Solid Airport
Receivable Funds Fund Fund Sewer Fund  Waste Fund Fund Totals
General Fund $ - 8 1,800 §$ 100946 $ 88,129 § 126924 § 317,799
Water and Sewer - - - 1,593 1,593
Airport Fund 9,535 - - - - 9,535
$ 9535 § 1,800 $ 100946 § 88,129 $ 128,517 § 328,927

e ey e——— e S—— S—— eae—
f—————___————J B —————— e

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur; transactions are
recorded in the accounting system; and payments between funds are made.

NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Grants

Amounts received or receivable for grants are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

Lawsuits

The government is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the government's counsel that resolution of these matters
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the government. During the year
ended September 30, 2015, the City was awarded restitution in the amount of $145,000 related to the
theft of City funds. The City is confident that these funds will be recovered and has recorded a
receivable for the full amount owed.
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Commitment

At September 30, 2015, the City had the following commitment:

Contract Completed
Amount to Date Balance
McSwain Park
Crowley Services $ 544726 $ 92,625 $ 452,101
$ 544726 $ 92,625 $ 452,101

NOTE J - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

The City maintains two single-employer defined benefit public employee retirement systems. One is
for police officers and former firefighters, and one is for all other employees of the City. Assets are
held separately and may be used only for the payment of benefits to the members of the respective

plans.

The Employees’ Retirement Plan and Police Officers' and Firefighters' Retirement System financial
statements are reported as a pension trust funds in the fiduciary fund financial statements. These
statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions are recognized
as revenues when due and when the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. State contributions for the Police Officers' and Firefighters' Retirement System are
recognized in the period payment is made from the State. Benefits and refunds are recognized when

due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.
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Statements of Fiduciary Net Position

Police Officers’ Employees’
and Firefighters' Retirement
Retirement System Plan Total
ASSETS
Contributions receivable $ 96,763 $ - $ 96,763
Interest and dividends receivable 18,676 - 18,676
Investments 8,592,559 2,244,372 10,836,931
TOTAL ASSETS 8,707,998 2,244,372 10,952,370
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10,674 - 10,674
NET POSITION
Net position restricted for pension benefits $ 8,697,324 $ 2,244,372 $ 10,941,696

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 238,735 $ 198,247 $ 436,982
Plan member 52,059 46,964 99,023
State of Florida 202,172 - 202,172
Total contributions 492,966 245,211 738,177
Investment income
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (1,211,748) (69,794) (1,281,542)
Realized gain on sale of investments 950,422 - 950,422
Interest and dividends 289,752 70,687 360,439
Total investment income 28,426 893 29,319
Less investment expenses 52,052 64,935 116,987
Net investment income (23,626) (64,042) (87,668)
Total additions 469,340 181,169 650,509
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 501,609 162,803 664,412
Administrative expenses 40,910 2,648 43,558
Refund of contributions 15,813 - 15,813
Total deductions 558,332 165,451 723,783
Change in net position (88,992) 15,718 (73,274)
Net position restricted for pension benefits
Net position, beginning of year 8,786,316 2,228,654 11,014,970
Net position, end of year $ 8,697,324 $ 2244372 $ 10,941,696
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Employees’ Retirement Plan

Plan Description

The Employees’ Retirement Plan for the City of Arcadia (the “Plan”) is a single-employer
contributory defined benefit plan administered by the City covering all municipal employees except
for police officers and firefighters. The Plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report, but is
included in the pension trust funds of the City’s financial statements.

All employees of the City are eligible to participate in the Plan subject to the following requirements:

Agrees in writing to make member contributions.

Employed by the City on a full-time basis and is not a police officer or firefighter.
Completed one (1) year of continuous service.

Attained age 19 (age 21 prior to September 20, 2011).

Entry date is 1/1 coinciding with or next following the date the requirements are met.

moOw>

As of the actuarial valuation date of January 1, 2014, membership consisted of:

Retirees, disabled participants and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits and terminated

employees not yet receiving benefits 31
Active employees 26
Total 57

The vesting schedule is as follows:

Vesting Schedule for General Employees
Effective as of September 20, 2011

Age Years of Service ~ Vesting %

Less than 55 Less than 2 0%
2 20%

3 40%

4 60%

5 80%

6 or more 100%

55 and over Any number 100%
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Prior to September 20, 2011

Age Years of Service Vesting %
Less than 55 Less than 5 0%
5 50%
6 60%
7 70%
8 80%
9 90%
10 100%
55 and over Any number 100%

Benefits at retirement are summarized as follows:

Retirement Benefit

Normal (age 65) 2.0% of average monthly compensation times credited
service. Average monthly compensation is defined as
the monthly average of total compensation for the 5
consecutive years of highest compensation of the last 10
years.

Early (not more than 10 years prior to Annuity equals the accrued benefit based on service to

normal retirement date) early retirement date, reduced by early retirement
factors.
Late (after normal retirement date) Benefit based on final average earnings and credited

service as of late retirement date.

In addition, the Plan provides a pre-retirement death benefit for those who attain 50 years of age and
15 years of service. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by and may be
amended by state statute and city ordinances.

Funding Policy
City employees are required to contribute 5% of their basic earnings excluding bonuses, overtime and

commissions. The employer is required to contribute actuarially determined amounts which, together
with member contributions, are sufficient to fund the System.
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The amount shown below as the actuarial accrued liability is a measure intended to help users assess:
(a) a pension fund's funded status on a going concern basis and (b) progress being made toward
accumulating the assets needed to pay benefits as due. The frozen initial liability cost method is used.
Under this method, the annual cost is equal to the normal cost, plus amortization of unfunded accrued
liabilities over a fixed period of years, selected within the minimum (10 years) and maximum (5 to 30
years) periods permitted by law. When first established, the frozen initial liability is the actuarial
accrued liability determined under the entry age normal cost method. At each subsequent valuation, it
is adjusted for normal costs, interest, contributions, and any changes due to plan amendments or
changes in actuarial assumptions. Normal cost is determined as a level percentage of covered
compensation of active employees.

The IRS Small Plan Combined Static Mortality Tables are used in the calculation of benefits.
Investment earnings are assumed at 6.5% per year. Salary increases are projected at 4.5% each year,
with no provision for inflation. Since the Plan is in the form of a life annuity, there is no post
retirement cost of living increases.

Contributions — The Plan's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

Plan Disclosures

Effective October 1, 2014, the City’s Employees’ Retirement Plan implemented the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, as well as Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GSB Statement No. 68, which significantly
changed the disclosures required related to the plans. The information disclosed below is presented
in accordance with this new standard. The City’s Plan does not issue separate financial statements.

Net Pension Liability of the City

The measurement date for the City’s net pension liability is September 30, 2015. The total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined as of that date. The components of
the net pension liability of the City at September 30, 2015, were as follows:

Total pension liability $ 3,194,834
Plan fiduciary net position (2,244,372)
City's net pension liability $ 950,462
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of total pension liability 70.25%
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For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $309,711 for the
plan. At September 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
related to its pension plan from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual $ 53,481 $ -
experience
Differences between expected and actual
investment earnings 123,958 -
Total $ 177,439 $ -

The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the plan will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2016 $ 35,488

2017 35,488

2018 35,488

2019 35,488

2020 35,487
Total $ 177,439

The required schedule of changes in the City’s net pension liability and related ratios immediately
following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about whether
the value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the total pension liability.

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
January 1, 2014, with update procedures performed by the actuary to roll forward to the total pension
liability measured as of September 30, 2015, using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary Increases 4.50%
Investment Rate of Return 6.50%
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of September 30, 2015, are summarized in the following
table:

Long Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
US Equity - Large Cap 8.11%
US Equity - Small/Mid Cap 8.11%
Non-US Equity - Developed 7.37%
US Corporate Bonds - Core 5.54%
US Treasuries (Cash Equivalents) 3.64%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Employees’
Retirement Plan was 6.50%.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at
rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate.
Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net
pension liabilities of the City, calculated using the discount rates noted above, as well as what the
City's net pension liabilities would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
5.50% 6.50% 7.50%
City's Net Pension Liability $ 1,287,571 $ 950,462 $ 554,062
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Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan
in effect as of September 30, 2015, and the current sharing pattern of costs between employer and
employee.

All actuarial methods and assumptions used in the January 1, 2014, actuarial valuation report were the
same as those used in the prior report:

Actuarial Valuation Date January 1, 2015

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Pay, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 10 years

Asset Valuation Method Book Value

Salary Increases 4.50%

Investment Rate of Return 6.50%

Retirement Age Normal Retirement Age, Age 65

Mortality 2015 IRS Small Plan Combined Static Mortality Table

Police Officers' and Firefighters' Retirement System

Plan Description

The Police Officers' and Firefighters' Retirement System of the City of Arcadia (the “Plan”) is a
single-employer contributory defined benefit plan administered by the City covering all police officers
and former firefighters of the City. The System does not issue a stand-alone financial report, but is
included in the pension trust funds of the City's financial statements.

All full-time police officers and former paid firefighters are eligible to participate in the Plan. Effective
June 1, 2006, the City and County consolidated fire suppression and emergency services, which
resulted in the County maintaining these operations. All City firefighters became employees of the
County, and were given the option to remain in the City’s pension plan or be refunded their employee
contributions. Several firefighters opted out of the Plan at this time. As of September 30, 2015, there
were no remaining former paid firefighters contributing to the Plan.
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At September 30, 2015, membership consisted of:

Retirees, disabled participants and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits, terminated
employees not yet receiving benefits and

DROP participants 29
Active employees 14
Total 43

Benefits

These benefit provisions are established by state statute and City ordinances. The State of Florida,
Division of Retirement reviews and accepts or rejects the actuarial valuation reports.

Retirement:

Normal (age 55 or 20 years of credited service)-3.65% of average final compensation
times the number of years of credited service;

Early (age 45 and 6 years of credited service)-Accrued benefits, reduced 3% per year for
each year prior to age 55.

Disability:

Service incurred covered from date of employment—Benefit accrued to date of disability but
not less than 42% of average final compensation, payable for life (with 120 payments
guaranteed) or until recovery (as determined by the Board);

Non-service incurred with ten years of credited service-Benefit accrued to date of disability
but not less than 42% of average final compensation, payable for life (with 120 payments
guaranteed) or until recovery (as determined by the Board).

Death:

Not Vested—Refund of member's contributions;
Vested—Accrued benefit paid to beneficiary for ten (10) years;
Post-retirement—According to option selected, if any.
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Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP):

Any member who is eligible for normal retirement under the Plan may elect to defer receipt of
such service retirement pension by participating in the DROP, while continuing their
employment with the City for a period not to exceed 60 months. The amount of the benefit
under the DROP is the same as the participant would have received under the Plan had he or
she terminated his or her employment and elected to receive monthly benefit payments. Under
the DROP, amounts representing the participant's monthly benefits are maintained within the
Plan, earning a 6.5% annual rate of return or actual net rate of return earned by the Plan at the
member’ election. Amounts in the DROP are then made available to the participant (various
payment options are available) at the end of the DROP period. The DROP balance as
September 30, 2015 is $856,075.

Funding Policy

The Plan's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates
that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate sufficient assets
to pay benefits when due. The Plan requires each participant to contribute 9.6% of earnings.

Additional funding is provided by the State of Florida on behalf of the City via a 1.85% tax on fire
insurance premiums (firefighters), and a .85% tax on casualty insurance premiums (police officers).
Any remaining amount necessary for payment of normal cost and amortization of accrued past service
liability over a 30 year period is paid by the City. The required City and State contributions to the Plan
for the year ended September 30, 2015, was 75.37% of payroll. Contribution requirements for the Plan
are established and may be amended by state law and city ordinance. The on-behalf contributions
provided by the State of Florida for fiscal year ending September 30, 2015, were $0.

If an employee separates service from the City before achieving six years of credited service, the
employee will receive 100% of their contributions. After achieving six years of service, an employee
accrues benefits to be payable at member’s election, on his otherwise early or normal retirement date,
or may receive a refund of member contributions if requested.

The amount shown below as the actuarial accrued liability is a measure intended to help users assess:
(a) a pension fund's funded status on a going concern basis and (b) progress being made toward
accumulating the assets needed to pay benefits as due. Allocation of the actuarial present value of
projected benefits between past and future service was based on service using the entry age normal
cost method. The asset valuation method was a 4-year smoothing methodology of market value
returns. Contribution rates for fiscal year ending September 30, 2015, were determined as of the
October 1, 2012, actuarial report. In this report, the amortization method used was the level of
percentage of pay, closed and the remaining amortization period was 26 years. Investment earnings
were assumed at 8% per year. Salary increases were projected at 5.75 — 6.50% each year, including
inflation of 3%. The Plan does not provide for post-retirement cost of living increases.
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Plan Disclosures

Effective October 1, 2014, the City’s Employees’ Retirement Plan implemented the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, as well as Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GSB Statement No. 68, which significantly
changed the disclosures required related to the plans. The information disclosed below is presented
in accordance with this new standard. The City’s Plan does not issue separate financial statements.

Net Pension Liability of the City
The measurement date for the City’s net pension liability is September 30, 2014. The total pension

liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined as of that date. The components of
the net pension liability of the City at September 30, 2015, were as follows:

Total pension liability $ 9,748,569
Plan fiduciary net position (8,786,316)
City's net pension liability $ 962,253
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of total pension liability 90.13%

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $289,719 for the
plan. At September 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
related to its pension plan from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

City pension plan contributions subsequent $ 440907 $ -
to the measurement date
Total $ 440,907 $ -

The deferred outflows of resources related to the Pension Plan, totaling $440,907 resulting from City
contributions to the plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016.

The required schedule of changes in the City’s net pension liability and related ratios immediately

following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about whether
the value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the total pension liability.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
October 1, 2014, with update procedures performed by the actuary to roll forward to the total pension
liability measured as of September 30, 2015, using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary Increases 5.75-6.50%
Investment Rate of Return 8.00%

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of September 30, 2015, are summarized in the following
table:

Long Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 7.5%
International Equity 8.5%
Domestic Fixed Income 2.5%
Global Fixed Income 3.5%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan was 8.00%.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at
rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate.
Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net
pension liabilities of the City, calculated using the discount rates noted above, as well as what the
City's net pension liabilities would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
7.00% 8.00% 9.00%
City's Net Pension Liability $ 1,909,698 $ 962,253 5 148982

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan
in effect as of September 30, 2015, and the current sharing pattern of costs between employer and
employee.

All actuarial methods and assumptions used in the October 1, 2014, actuarial valuation report were the
same as those used in the prior report.

NOTE K - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

The City provides health insurance benefits to its retired employees through a single-employer Plan
administered by the City. Pursuant to provisions of Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, former
employees who retire from the City and eligible dependents may continue to participate in the City’s
fully-insured benefit plan for medical and prescription drug insurance coverage. The City subsidizes
the premium rates paid by retirees by allowing them to participate in the Plan at reduced or blended
group (implicitly subsidized) premium rates for both active and retired employees. These rates provide
both an explicit and implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial basis, their current and future
claims are expected to result in higher costs to the Plan on average than those of active employees.
The benefits provided under this defined benefit plan are provided for a retiree’s lifetime (or until such
time at which the retiree discontinues coverage under the City sponsored plans, if earlier). The Plan
does not issue a stand-alone financial report.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Funding Policy

Contribution requirements for the post-employment benefit plan of the City are established and may
be amended through recommendations of the City Administrator and action from the City Council.
Currently, the City’s other post-employment benefits are unfunded. The City has not advance-funded
or established a funding methodology for the annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) costs or
the net OPEB obligation. For the fiscal year, the City provided required contributions of $122,572
toward the annual OPEB costs, in the form of age adjusted premiums paid on behalf of retirees for the
fully insured benefits, and net of retiree contributions. Retirees are required to pay from 0% to 100%
of the blended premium depending on their years of service and age at retirement to continue coverage
under the City’s group health insurance program.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City has elected to calculate the annual required contribution (ARC) and related information
using the Alternative Measurement Method (AMM) permitted by GASB Statement 45 for employers
in plans with fewer than one hundred total Plan members. The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the past two fiscal years were as follows:

Actual
Annual City Percentage Net OPEB
Year Ending OPEB Cost Contribution  Contributed Obligation

9/30/13 $ 122949 § 108,646 88% $ 719,206
9/30/14 128,928 122,572 95% 725,562
9/30/15 135,670 131,817 97% 729,415

The following table shows the development of the City’s annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation
for the past three fiscal years:
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

2015 2014 2013
Normal Cost $ 25,109 $ 23,913 $ 22,774
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 154,095 148,168 142,469
Annual required contribution 179,204 172,081 165,243
Interest on net OPEB obligation 29,022 28,768 28,196
Adjustments to annual required contribution (72,556) (71,921) (70,490)
Annual OPEB cost 135,670 128,928 122,949
Contributions made 131,817 122,572 108,646
Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,853 6,356 14,303
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 725,562 719,206 704,903
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 729,415 $ 725,562 $ 719,206

Funded Status and Funding Progress-As of September 30, 2013, the AMM valuation date, the Plan
assets were $0, the actuarial accrued liability was $1,384,654, the total unfunded actuarial accrued
liability was $1,384,654, and the actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial accrued
liability (funded ratio) was 0%. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by
the Plan) was $2,357,730, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered
payroll was 58.73%.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of the occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of the City are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information
about whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions—Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and Plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical patterns of the sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and Plan members to that point. The methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Based on the historical and expected returns of the City’s short-term investment portfolio, a discount
rate of 4% was used. An inflation rate of 3% was assumed. In addition, the Entry Age Normal
actuarial cost method was used. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payrolls on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at September
30, 2015 was ten years. Health insurance trends start at 11.5% for the fiscal year ending in 2014 and
8% for 2015, grading down by 0.5% per year to 5% at the ultimate trend rate by 2021.

During the summer of 2013, the City revised the retiree health subsidy program. Under the revised
policy, employees retiring after September 30, 2013, with at least 20 years of service will be eligible
for a Medicare stipend. There will be no other form of direct premium subsidy from the City for
employees retiring in the future. Current retirees not eligible for Medicare may continue receiving the
City assistance under the current arrangements until they become eligible for Medicare benefits. Upon
attaining eligibility for Medicare, such current retirees will be required to discontinue coverage
through the City group plan and they may be eligible for a stipend at a fixed amount of $225 per
month. Retirees currently covered through a Medicare Supplement are grandfathered and may
continue coverage and receive the direct City subsidy for as long as they remain covered under the
plan.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards, the following information is presented as a
required part of the financial statements.



CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 2,432,067 $ 2,432,067 $ 2,571,557 $ 139,490
Charges for services 492,502 502,502 374,052 (128,450)
Permits, fees and assessments 648,000 648,000 707,746 59,746
Intergovernmental 578,024 565,026 586,093 21,067
Fines and forfeitures 41,500 41,500 59,838 18,338
Interest revenue 250 250 2,610 2,360
Other revenues 213,300 294,703 302,106 7,403
Total revenues 4,405,643 4,484,048 4,604,002 119,954
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government:
Legislative 75,346 75,346 61,795 13,551
Executive 221,810 234,811 230,568 4,243
Financial and administrative 152,887 142,887 137,346 5,541
Garage 128,329 121,328 117,611 3,717
Way Building 29,300 39,300 35,620 3,680
Legal 160,100 85,100 79,959 5,141
Comprehensive planning 151,869 101,869 98,298 3,571
Other governmental services 801,696 538,196 247,539 290,657
Total general government 1,661,337 1,338,837 1,008,736 330,101
Public safety:
Law enforcement 1,377,372 1,545,078 1,563,348 (18,270)
Fire control 316,000 539,000 529,884 9,116
School crossing guard 19,205 19,204 15,900 3,304
Total public safety 1,712,577 2,103,282 2,109,132 (5,850)
Physical environment:
Cemetery 50,462 52,163 55,043 (2,880)
Total public works 50,462 52,163 55,043 (2,880)
Transportation:
Roads and streets 331,275 363,274 366,002 (2,728)
Traffic control 66,611 41,611 30,527 11,084
Total transportation 397,886 404,885 396,529 8,356
Parks and recreation:
Golf course 411,736 411,736 413,077 (1,341)
Parks 237,062 228,561 226,743 1,818
Mobile home park 152,298 162,298 159,662 2,636
Total parks and recreation 801,096 802,595 799,482 3,113

(Continued)
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
Capital outlay $ 15000 § 15000 § 9024 § 5,976
Total expenditures 4,638,358 4,716,762 4,377,946 332,840
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (232,715) (232,714) 226,056 458,770
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 173,000 173,000 15,408 (157,592)
Transfers out - - (126,592) (126,592)
Total other financing sources 173,000 173,000 (111,184) (284,184)
Net change in fund balances (59,715) (59,714) 114,872 174,586
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,436,374 1,436,374 1,436,374 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,376,659 $ 1,376,660 3 1,551,246 $ 174,586

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The budget was prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures were controlled at the department level.
All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
MCSWAIN PARK FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES:
Other revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Parks and recreation
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances. beginning of year

Fund balances. end of year

Variance
Budgeted Amounts with Final
Original Final Actual Budget
$ - 3 544,726 - $ (544,726)
- 544,726 - (544,726)
- 544,726 83,362 461,364
- 544,726 83,362 461,364
- - (83,362) (83,362)
- - 44,726 44,726
- - 44,726 44,726
- - (38,636) (38,636)
500,000 500,000 500,000 -
$ 500,000 $ 500,000 461,364 $ (38,636)
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS - EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN

Total pension liability

Service cost

Interest on total pension liability

Differences between expected and actual experience

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - state
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Administrative expenses
Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

City's net pension liability - ending (a) - (b)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
Covered-employee payroll

City's net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes to the Schedule:
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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2015 2014
49670 $ 68,971
195,956 202,194
66,851 (193,138)
(162,803) (146,834)
149,674 (68,807)
3,045,160 3,113,967
3,194,834 $ 3,045,160
198247 $ 143,577
46,964 30,416
(64,042) 99,110
(162,303) (146,834)
(2,648) (2,735)
15,718 123,534
2,228,654 2,105,120
2244372 $ 2,228,654
950,462 $ 816,506
70.25% 73.19%
640,695 $ 594,195
148.35% 137.41%



CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN

2015 2014
Actuarially determined contribution $ 158,901 $ 151,965
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 198,247 143,577
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (39,346) $ 8,388
Covered employee payroll $ 640,695 $ 594,195
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 30.94% 24.16%

Notes to the Schedule:

Valuation Date January 1, 2015

Actuarially determined contribution is calculated on a plan year (calendar year) basis. The numbers displayed
represent a blend of the actuarially determined contributions for the current and prior plan years. The blend is 75%
of the current plan year (9 months) and 25% of the prior plan year (3 months).

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method: Frozen initial liability

Amortization method: Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining amortization period: 10

Asset valuation method: Book Value

Salary increases: 4.50%

Investment rate of return: 6.50%

Retirement age: Normal Retirement Age, Age 65

Inflation: 3.0% per year

Mortality: 2015 IRS Small Plan Combined Static Mortality Table

Notes to the Schedule:
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PENSION INVESTMENT RETURNS
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN

2015 2014

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses 0.40% 4.87%

Notes to the Schedules:
The schedules will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS - POLICE OFFICERS' AND FIREFIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Reporting Period Ending
Measurement Date
Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - state
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Administrative expenses
Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

9/30/2016 9/30/2015 9/30/2014
9/30/2015 9/30/2014 9/30/2013
$ 117,001 $ 119940 $ 111,056
768,557 741,182 717,978
132,719 . .
93,816 . .
(517,422) (514,785) (580,930)
594,771 346,337 248,104
9,748,569 9,402,232 9,154,128
$10,343340  § 9,748,569  § 9,402,232
$ 238,735 § 381,020 § 247,435
202,172 . 109,590
52,059 48,565 56,484
(23,626) 555,671 888,134
(517,422) (514,820) (580,930)
(40,910) (32,798) (30,115)
(88,992) 437,638 690,598
8,786,316 8,348,678 7,658,080

$ 8,697,324

$ 8,786,316

$ 8,348,678

City's net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 1,646,016 $ 962,253 $ 1,053,554
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liabilit; 84.09% 90.13% 88.79%
Covered-employee payroll $ 748,459 $ 505,532 $ 588,375
City's net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payro 219.92% 190.34% 179.06%

Notes to the Schedule:

The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

POLICE OFFICERS' AND FIREFIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Reporting Period Ending
Measurement Date
Actuarially determined contribution

9/30/2016 9/30/2015 9/30/2014
9/30/2015 9/30/2014 9/30/2013
$ 344295 § 381,020 $ 357,026

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 440,907 381,020 357,026

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered employee payroll

$ (96,612) 3 - $ -

$ 748459 § 505,532 § 588,375

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 58.91% 75.37% 60.68%

Notes to the Schedule;

Valuation Date

October 1, 2013

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of October 1, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year

in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Funding method:

Amortization method:
Remaining amortization period:
Asset valuation method:

Inflation:
Salary increases:

Interest Rate:
Interest Rate:

Payroll growth:
Retirement age:

Early retirement

Entry age normal actuarial cost method

Level percentage of pay, closed

25years (as of 10/1/2013)

Each year, the actuarial value of assets is brought forward using
the historical geometric four-year average market value return.
Over time, this may result in a deminis bias that is above or below
the market value of assets.

3.0% per year
Years of Service Increase in Compensation
Less than § 6.50%
5-10 6.25%
10-15 6.00%
More than 15 5.75%
8.0% per year, compounded annually, net of investment-related
expenses
8.0% per year, compounded annually, net of investment-related
expenses
None
Number of Years after First Probability of
Eligibility for Normal Retirement
0 50%
1 50%
2 100%

Beginning with eligibility for Early Retirement (Age 45 & 6 years
of Credited Service), Members are assumed to reture at the rate of
10% per year with immediate subsidized benefits.

The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULES OF PENSION INVESTMENT RETURNS
POLICE OFFICERS' AND FIREFIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2016 9/30/2015 9/30/2014
Measurement Date 9/30/2015 9/30/2014 9/30/2013
Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses -0.37% 6.80% 11.69%
Notes to the Schedules:

The schedules will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA OPEB PLAN

Actuarial Unfunded / UAALasa

Actuarial Accrued Surplus Annual Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

09/30/10  $ - $ 4,165,734 § 4,165,734 - % 3 1,793,708 23224 %

09/30/12 - 1,384,654 1,384,654 - 2,357,730 58.73
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COMBINING FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These statements provide more detailed information than can be found in the basic financial
statements. The combining fund financial statements provide information on the individual nonmajor
governmental funds and the combining fiduciary funds.



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted for particular purposes or to finance specified activities as required by law or
administrative regulation.

Infrastructure Fund: This fund is used to account for the receipt, custody and expenditure of
infrastructure tax revenues.

Street Reserve Fund: This fund is used to account for the receipt, custody and expenditure of local
option gas tax revenues for maintaining streets and roads.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital Improvement Fund: This fund is used to account for the receipt, custody and expenditure of
funds designated for capital improvements.



CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Special Revenue Funds

Infrastructure Street Capital
ASSETS Fund Reserve Improvement Totals
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,161,282 $ 1,234,149 $ 1,134,706 $ 3,530,137
Due from other governments - - 52,999 52,999
Total assets $§ 1L161,282 § 1,234,149 $ 1,187,705 § 3,583,136
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - 3 - 3 - 3 -
Total liabilities - - - -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Transportation - 1,234,149 - 1,234,149
Assigned for:
Special projecis 1,161,282 - - 1,161,282
Capital projects - - 1,187,705 1,187,705
Total fund balances 1,161,282 1,234,149 1,187,705 3,583,136
Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 1,161,282 § 1,234149 $ 1,187,705 § 3,583,136
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Special Revenue Funds

Infrastructure Street Capital
Fund Reserve Improvement Totals
Revenues:

Taxes $ - 3 - 8 496,023 $ 496,023

Interest revenue 3,282 3,488 3,001 9,771
Total revenues 3,282 3,488 499,024 505,794

Expenditures:

Capital outlay - - 265,729 265,729
Total expenditures - - 265,729 265,729
Excess of revenues over expenditures 3,282 3,488 233,295 240,065

Other financing (uses)
Transfers out - - (60,134) (60,134)
Total other financing (uses) - - (60,134) (60,134)
Net change in fund balances 3,282 3,488 173,161 179,931
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,158,000 1,230,661 1,014,544 3,403,205
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,161,282 § 1,234,149 § 1,187,705 $ 3,583,136
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for the activities of funds held in a trustee or agency capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the City’s own programs. The City reports pension trust funds
which are used to account for the activities of the City’s retirement systems, which accumulate
resources for pension benefits payments made to employees.

Police Officers’ and Firefighters’ Retirement System: To account for the activities of the City’s
defined benefit retirement plan for police officers and former firefighters of the City.

Employees’ Retirement Plan: To account for the activities of the City’s defined retirement plan for all
City employees other than police officers and former firefighters.



CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Police Officers' Employees’
and Firefighters' Retirement
Retirement System Plan Total

ASSETS
Contributions receivable $ 96,763 $ - $ 96,763
Interest and dividends receivable 18,676 - 18,676
Investments

Money market funds 181,480 - 181,480

U.S. Government and agencies 1,214,296 - 1,214,296

Mortgage backed securities 884,176 - 884,176

Corporate bonds 1,430,656 - 1,430,656

Corporate stocks 4,881,951 - 4,881,951

Immediate participation guarantee contracts - 893,762 893,762

Pooled investments - 1,350,610 1,350,610

Total investments 8,592,559 2,244,372 10,836,931

TOTAL ASSETS 8,707,998 2,244 372 10,952,370
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10,674 - 10,674
Total liabilities 10,674 - 10,674
NET POSITION
Net position restricted for

Pension benefits $ 8,697,324 $ 2244372 $ 10,941,696
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ADDITIONS
Contributions
City
State of Florida
Plan members
Total contributions

Investment income
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Realized gain on sale of investments
Interest and dividends
Total investment income
Less investment expenses
Net investment income
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits
Administrative expenses
Refund of contributions
Total deductions

Change in net position
Net position restricted for pension benefits

Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

Police Officers' Employees’
and Firefighters' Retirement
Retirement System Plan Total
$ 238,735 $ 198,247  § 436,982
202,172 - 202,172
52,059 46,964 99,023
492,966 245,211 738,177
(1,211,748) (69,794) (1,281,542)
950,422 - 950,422
289,752 70,687 360,439
28,426 893 29,319
52,052 64,935 116,987
(23,626) (64,042) (87,668)
469,340 181,169 650,509
501,609 162,803 664,412
40,910 2,648 43,558
15,813 - 15,813
558,332 165,451 723,783
(88,992) 15,718 (73,274)
8,786,316 2,228,654 11,014,970
3 8,697,324 $§ 2244372 § 10,941,696
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor, City Council
and City Administrator
City of Arcadia, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the Unites States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Arcadia, Florida (the “City™), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 27, 2016. Our report includes a reference to
the change in accounting principle resulting from the implementation of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Findings 2015-001 and 2015-002 to be material
weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City’s Responses to Findings

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are reported in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. The City’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

oo # Gorfiner, 5KE

Bradenton, Florida
June 27, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Mayor, City Council,
and City Administrator
City of Arcadia, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Arcadia, Florida’s (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30,
2015. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

o é%/&mv xze

Bradenton, Florida
June 27, 2016
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2015

CFDA
Federal / State Agency, Pass-through Entity, Federal / State Program Number Grant Identification Number Expenditures
Federal Awards:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(Passed through Florida Department of Economic Opportunity)

Community Development Block Grant 14.228 13DB-OI-07-24-02-N 22 644,692
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 644,692
U.S. Department of Justice
(Passed through Florida Department of Law Enforcement)

Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2015-JAGC-DESO-2-R3-097 10,306

Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2015-JAGC-DESO-1-R1-003 1,696
(Passed through Florida Office of the Attorney General)

Victims of Crime Grant 16.575 V145-14008 29,204
Total U.S. Department of Justice 41,206
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct

Aviation Improvement Program 20.106 3-12-0093-004-2013 256,200
Tatal U.S. Department of Transportation 256,200
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(Passed through the Florida Department of Environmental Protection)

Capitalized Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468 DW140100 439,655
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 439,655
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,381,753
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes Federal grant activity of the
City. The reporting entity of the City is disclosed in Note A of the notes to the basic financial
statements. All Federal awards received directly from Federal agencies, as well as Federal awards
passed through other governmental entities, are included in this schedule.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Loans Outstanding

The City has $4,638,238 in outstanding loans as of September 30, 2015, from the State Revolving
Fund loan program.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SECTION 1
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified? X yes no

Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses? yes X __none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X _no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major federal programs:
Material weaknesses identiﬂed? yes X no
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major Federal programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, Section 510(a)? yes _X no
Identification of major federal program:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
66.468 Capitalized Grants for Drinking Water SRF
14.228 Community Development Block Grant
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes _X no
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

SECTION II
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

2015-001 Bank Reconciliations

Criteria: To ensure that financial statements properly present the financial position and results of operations
of the City in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), in addition to providing
meaningful financial reports to City Council and management, the City should reconcile its bank accounts to
the general ledger on a monthly basis, and in a timely manner. The benefit of monthly reconciliations is that
errors do not accumulate but can be identified and attributed to a particular period, which makes it easier to
perform future reconciliations. Any reconciling differences should be corrected before the books are closed
for each months end.

Condition: While performing our audit procedures, we noted the City’s bank accounts associated with
pooled cash were not reconciled to the general ledger in a timely manner, and other reconciliations were not
completed and reviewed in a timely manner. This resulted in discrepancies between the supporting
documentation and the amounts reported in the general ledger. Thus, audit adjustments to cash general
ledger accounts were required during the course of our audit of the City’s financial statements for the year
ended September 30, 2015.

Context/Cause: The City is still working through issues that were a result of turnover in the Finance
Department and the City Administrator during the year ended September 30, 2014. This turnover caused
delay in completion of the 2013 and 2014 fiscal year audits, which has caused a back-up in the reconciliation
of bank accounts.

Effect: Several audit adjustments and City adjustments were needed to be made subsequent to the start of
fieldwork which was several months after year end within most all of the City’s funds to cash and offsetting
revenues / expenditures.

Recommendation: Management of the City is continuing to improve its period close process, as evidenced
by completion of the financial statement audit closer to the state required date of June 30 the last three years.
We recommend that the City continue to improve on its period close procedures to ensure that they are
completed on a monthly basis. We also recommend that all bank reconciliations be reviewed and approved
by a secondary person with the appropriate knowledge and expertise. All entries should be recorded prior to
commencement of the audit to facilitate the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Management’s Response: Management concurs with this finding. Staff is strengthening its
procedures and practices to ensure that reconciliations and entries are done on a monthly basis. It is
imperative that all entries be recorded prior to commencement of the audit and staff is striving to make
sure that is the case for the upcoming year and all years to follow. It is the goal of management that
for fiscal year 2016-17 bank reconciliations will be completed every month. Period closing procedures
continue to improve. Staff training has been a priority in the 2014-15 year and will continue to be a
priority. Staff at all levels in Finance have become much more aware of discovering issues with
entries and software glitches and has learned how to resolve them in a timely manner.

2015-002 Accounts & Grants Receivable

Criteria: To ensure that financial statements properly present the financial position and results of operations
of the City in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), in addition to providing
meaningful financial reports to City Council and management, the City should reconcile the general ledger
accounts for accounts receivable and grants receivable on a monthly basis. The benefit of monthly
reconciliations is that errors do not accumulate but can be identified and attributed to a particular period,
which makes it easier to perform future reconciliations. Any reconciling differences should be corrected
before the books are closed for the month-end.

Condition: Our audit procedures disclosed that utility receivables subsidiary ledgers did not reconcile to the
general ledger. Additionally, procedures disclosed that grant activity related to the airport federal grant was
not recorded in the GL. Both of these discrepancies resulted in material audit adjustments to correctly state
these balances in the City’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Context/Cause: A reconciliation of the utility billing subsidiary accounts receivable was not performed as
of September 30, 2015. Additionally, the City failed to recognize accounts receivable and related revenue for
an airport grant in which funds were expended in 2015 but reimbursement requests were not submitted.
Additionally, there was a lack of management oversight over the financial reporting process.

Effect: Adjustments to increase accounts receivable by $551,519, increase revenues by $282,075, increase
construction in progress by $103,325, decrease expenses by $269,444, and increase notes payable by
$103,325 were required to be posted to various funds of the City.

Recommendation: We recommend the City adopt procedures requiring monthly reconciliations of all
balance sheet accounts to the subsidiary ledgers and other supporting documentation. All entries should be
recorded and all reconciliations should be reviewed prior to commencement of the audit to facilitate the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Management’s Response: Management concurs with this finding. The Finance Department has not
always overseen all financial aspects of Grants. Management changed that, and now when the
payment request has been given to Accounts Payable, Finance oversees the grant process from that
point on. Finance staff makes the requests for reimbursement from the granting agency and is then
able to know when funds are expected and also when funds are going to be received in another fiscal
year so proper entries can be made to recognize accounts receivable.

SECTION III
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported.
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CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

2014-001 Cash & Accounts Receivable

Condition: Our audit procedures disclosed that the bank accounts and accounts receivables had not
been reconciled to the general ledger. This resulted in discrepancies between the supporting
documentation and the amounts reported in the general ledger. Thus, audit adjustments to cash and
accounts receivable general ledger accounts were required during the course of our audit of the City’s
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2014.

Context/Cause: Turnover in the Finance Department and the City Administrator position during the
year ended September 30, 2014 contributed to various City cash and accounts receivable subsidiary
ledgers not being properly maintained throughout the year. Additionally, there was a lack of
management oversight over the financial reporting process.

Auditee Response / Status: Substantially resolved.
2014-002 Accrued and Long-Term Liabilities

Condition: Our audit procedures disclosed that payroll benefit expenses/expenditures were being
recorded to the accrued benefit expense accounts, instead of to the true expenditure/expense accounts.
Additionally, recognition of capital lease liabilities were not recorded in the general ledger provided at
the beginning of the audit. This resulted in audit adjustments to correctly state these balances in the
City’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2014.

Context/Cause: Turnover in the Finance Department and the City Administrator position during the
year ended September 30, 2014 contributed to the various City liability accounts subsidiary ledgers to
not being properly maintained throughout the year. Additionally, there was a lack of management
oversight over the financial reporting process.

Auditee Response / Status: Substantially resolved.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Mayor, City Council
and City Administrator
City of Arcadia, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of the City of Arcadia, Florida (the "City"), as of and for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated June 27, 2016.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reports and Schedule

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and on Internal Control over Compliance required by OMB Circular A-133; and Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated September 30,
2015, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit
report. Corrective actions have been taken to address findings made in the preceding annual financial report as
findings 2014-001 and 2014-002 were corrected during the current year and are not repeated in this year’s
report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The City of Arcadia, Florida
was established in 1901 under the 1901 Laws of Florida, Chapter 5080. The City has no component units.
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Financial Condition

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we report the results of our
determination as to whether or not the City has met one or more of the conditions described in
Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the City did not meet any of the conditions described
in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the City’s
financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations
made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Annual Financial Report

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we report the results of our
determination as to whether the annual financial report for the City for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2015, filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section
218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2015. In connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports
were in agreement.

Other Matters

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management
letter any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did
not have any such recommendations.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants
the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any
such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Mayor and Members of City Council, and
applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.
W eutin ? Glinar K

Bradenton, Florida
June 27, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor, City Council
and City Administrator
City of Arcadia, Florida

We have examined the City of Arcadia, Florida’s (the “City””) compliance with Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds during the year ended September 30, 2015.
Management is responsible for the City’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with
specified requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the
year ended September 30, 2015.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City and the Auditor General, State of
Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

W euttin. “W xze

Bradenton, Florida
June 27, 2016
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Administration
SUBJECT: Minutes from Regular Meeting on July 5, 2016

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approval of July 5, 2016 Meeting Minutes as presented.

SUMMARY:
FISCAL IMPACT: () Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other
ATTACHMENTS: () Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (x) Other
Department Head: Penny Delaney D) Date: 07/08/16
Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:
City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:
City Administrator: Terry Stewart @ Date: /~¥-/¢
COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended () Disapproved

() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain () Approved with Modifications




AGENDA MINUTES
CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF ARCADIA
TUESDAY, JULY 5§, 2016
6:00 P.M.

The following minutes reflect action items of the City Council of the City of Arcadia. For a
verbatim copy of the minutes, you may contact City Administration to obtain a copy of the
recorded meeting.

INVOCATION, PLEDGE CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Pastor Thomas Simmons gave the invocation which was followed by the pledge of
allegiance. The Mayor called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m. and the following
members and staff were present:

Arcadia City Council
Mayor Susan Coker Councilmember Joseph E. Fink
Deputy Mayor Frierson Councilmember Judy Wertz-Strickland

Councilmember S. Delshay Turner was not in attendance.

Arcadia City Staff

City Administrator Terry Stewart Finance Director Beth Carsten

City Clerk Penny Delaney Code Enforcement Officer Carl McQuay
City Attorney T.J. Wohl Marshal Matt Anderson
PRESENTATION

Walk-On Presentation — National League of Cities Service Line Warranty Program

Ashley Shiwarski advised that she represented the National League of Cities Service Line
Warranty Program (material covered in this presentation is on file in the City Clerk’s office).
She stated that this voluntary program partners with municipalities to make it available to
residents and the program provides homeowners with optional protection on their external
waterlines, external sewer lines and in-home plumbing. She further stated that there is no cost or
administrative time for the City and the City would receive an incremental revenue stream for
their participation. After the presentation, Council advised that they wished for it to be brought
back to them for consideration. Councilmember Fink asked that copies of all relevant materials
be provided to administrative and legal staff to be used for the purpose of making a
recommendation to Council.

City Council Meeting Minutes
July 5, 2016
Page 1 of 6



Agenda Item 1 — Special Event Rules

City Administrator Stewart advised Council that the presentation did not require any
action on their part except to give staff direction on where they would like to go with it. He
explained that prior to his arrival on staff, there was a change to the special event ordinance that
was brought before Council but no action was taken on it. He advised that he had reviewed it
and changes had been made to it from what was brought to Council before. Mr. Stewart stated
that the presentation would include some of the changes with one significant change addressing
the burden of having to bring every one of those to City Council and making it an administrative
matter, but also to eliminate certain ones that would have to come to City Council for final
action. Mr. Stewart advised that after the presentation, staff would like direction from Council as
to whether or not they would like for staff to work with the City Attorney to put it into ordinance
format to be brought back to Council for approval. At this time, Code Enforcement Officer Carl
McQuay presented the presentation (material covered in this presentation is on file in the City
Clerk’s office). After the presentation and further discussion, City Administrator Stewart asked
Council if they wish for staff to proceed and it was the general consensus for staff to do so.

CONSENT AGENDA

Before Council voted on the consent agenda, Mayor Coker asked George Chase, of
Friends of Arcadia Airport, to step to the podium and explain the various fly-ins and he did so.

Agenda Item 2 — City Council Minutes for Meeting on June 21, 2016

Agenda Item 3 — Special Event Permit — Florida Sport Aviation Antique and Classic
Association (FSAACA) Fly-In

Agenda Item 4 — Special Event Permit — Millennial Wings Fly-In — Friends of
Arcadia Airport

Agenda Item 5 — Special Event Permit — Annual Rodeo Weekend Fly-In Camp-Out
— Friends of Arcadia Airport

Agenda Item 6 — Politics in the Park — Chamber of Commerce and The Arcadian

Councilmember Wertz-Strickland made a motion to approve Consent Agenda 2, 3, 4, 5
and 6 and Councilmember Fink seconded the motion. No discussion followed and it was
unanimously, 4/0, approved.

ACTION ITEMS

Agenda Item 7 — Ordinance No. 1014 amending Section 11.14.00 and 13.06.00 of the
Land Development Code to include the necessary processes and procedures to obtain
Certified Local Government status from the Florida Department of State, Division of
Historical Resources — Second and Final Reading

Councilmember Fink made a motion for the ordinance to be read by title only and
Councilmember Wertz-Strickland seconded the motion. No discussion followed and it was
unanimously, 4/0, approved. Mayor Coker instructed the City Clerk to read the ordinance by
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title only and the City Clerk did so. Councilmember Wertz-Strickland made a motion to accept
Ordinance 1014 and Deputy Mayor Frierson seconded the motion. At this time, Mayor Coker
asked Carol Mahler to step to the podium. Ms. Mabhler, a representative of the DeSoto County
Historic Society, read the DeSoto County Historic Society, Inc. Arcadia, Florida Resolution 06-
2016 which supported the adoption of Ordinance 1014 and provided a copy for the records (a
copy of Resolution 06-2016 is on file in the City Clerk’s office). Mayor Coker instructed the
City Clerk to take a roll call vote and the following are the results of said roll call vote: Mayor
Coker voted in the affirmative, Councilmember Fink voted in the affirmative, Councilmember
Wertz-Strickland voted in the affirmative and Deputy Mayor Frierson voted in the affirmative.
No discussion followed and it was unanimously, 4/0, approved. '

Agenda Item 8 — First Amendment to Operating/Building Lease Agreement for
Fixed Base Operator and First Amendment to Airport Commercial Lease (Butler Building)

City Attorney Wohl advised this was an amendment to revise the notice provisions
under both the Fixed Base Operator Lease and the Butler Building Lease with Eagle Vistas. He
informed Council that essentially it became burdensome for staff at Eagle Vistas to correspond
the certified mail return receipt requested. He stated that both staff and Eagle Vistas were
amendable to revising the notice provision to allow electronic correspondence to dispatch
notices. He advised there was also an additional change in the fixed base operator agreement in
the first bullet point in subparagraph 6.A. wherein it currently reads “airport manager” and it will
be changed to read “FBO Manager”. He stated an airport manager designation was better suited
for the City Administrator or whichever staff person is designated under the organizational chart
as the airport manager which is not a title to be given to the FBO who is not managing the whole
airport, but just the fixed base operator operations. He then advised that Eagle Vistas had
already signed it agreeing to the language and the revisions. Councilmember Wertz-Strickland
made a motion to approve the changes and Deputy Mayor Frierson seconded the motion. No
discussion followed and it was unanimously, 4/0, approved.

COMMENTS FROM DEPARTMENTS

Marshal Anderson provided Council with the Police Department Monthly Report and
asked if Council or the general public had any questions or concerns and there were none. He
advised the department had made three (3) DUI arrests with one (1) involving a wreck. He
further advised that the fireworks event was injury free regarding the department responding.

City Attorney Wohl advised that he had nothing to report.

City Administrator Stewart informed City Council of a meeting he had with Penny Kurtz,
the Assistant Administrator of the Health Department. He stated that the Health Department had
been placed high on a list for county health departments in the state that are eligible for new or
expanded facilities. However, he pointed out, that in order for them to go ahead, they have to
ensure the property on which the building being accomplished is in the possession of the County.
He advised that back in 2013, this was brought to Council’s attention (there are parcels located at
the site that were, at the time, still in possession of the City). He further advised that it was his
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understanding that a previous City Council approved donating those properties to the County for
the purpose of expanding the health department. He informed Council that for some reason the
actual deeding of the properties to the County never occurred. He wanted to ensure the current
Council was fully aware of what was happening so that if there were any questions or concerns,
they could raise those. He stated that he understood the costs would be borne by the County and
Council Members confirmed. Mr. Stewart stated it was his intent to administratively do what is
necessary to finish what the Council initially decided to do and he assumed it would require the
signature of the Mayor. It was the general consensus of the Council to move forward with it.

Mr. Stewart then addressed the new rodeo arena. He advised that it would be built next
to the Turner Center. He further advised the City provides the utilities for the Turner Center and
will also be providing water and sewer uiilities for the new rodeo arena. He stated it was on an
unincorporated area of DeSoto County. He advised there was a policy already in place that
states there is a different fee for making those connections for properties that are inside the City
versus properties that are outside the City. He explained that if they were within the City of
Arcadia, the costs would be just over $21,000.00, but being outside the City, the net fee would be
$95,000.00. He explained the only way they could avoid that is to either be incorporated into the
City or to sign a pre-annexation agreement. He asked for Council direction before he had any
conversations with the Rodeo Association. After confirming the Rodeo Association was a non-
profit organization and after further discussion regarding annexation eligibility, Councilmember
Fink made a motion to instruct the City Administrator to approach the Rodeo Association asking
them to either annex in because it has eligibility or to build a pre-annexation agreement and
Councilmember Wertz-Strickland seconded the motion. Mr. Stewart advised that he had spoken
with the Rodeo Association’s Executive Director to let them know of the difference in costs,
what the requirements were and that he would be having this conversation with Council. No
discussion followed and it was unanimously, 4/0, approved.

Next, City Administrator Stewart advised that the Arcadia Housing Authority was an
entity that operates separately from the City, but is connected to the City in some way with a
contract. He further advised that we enable the authority to allow them to be a part of our
insurance program, but they are not a subdivision of our political entity, and the insurance
companies are starting to balk at that. Councilmember Fink asked what type of insurance they
were talking about and Mr. Stewart advised it was medical insurance for their staff. He
explained that they pay for it, but in addition to what he just stated, with their history, they are
driving our rates up. Mr. Stewart stated that he was advising Council of the issue, would fully
explore it and would bring a recommendation back to them. After more discussion,
Councilmember Fink asked that the City Attorney look at other models, and referenced
Highlands County, to see what they do. Deputy Mayor Frierson asked how many employees it
involved and was advised that there were a total of eighteen (18). Deputy Mayor Frierson asked
if it was at the same rate as the City employees and Mr. Stewart advised that it was at the same
rate. It was the general consensus of City Council for it to be explored and to bring additional
information back to Council. Deputy Mayor Frierson advised that it was more important to her
regarding how much impact it was having on the City rather than what other models show.
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Mr. Stewart then advised that he had the City Clerk pull a document that dealt with the
incorporation of the Housing Authority and it identified its relationship with the City. He stated
the document indicates that the Authority will not pay any property taxes.on properties under its
ownership, but it also states that the Authority will make a payment in lieu of taxes to the City
and other government entities that are out there. Mr. Stewart stated he could not find where any
such payment has been made as far back as the City’s records go. He stated he could not find
any intervening agreement that would alter it. He further stated that there had been a number of
issues wherein the City had dealt with the Housing Authority and this is the document that they
consistently provide to the City. He stated action rests solely with the City Council, but if there
is an agreement out there that is not being followed, it either needs to be changed or it needs to
be followed. Mr. Stewart advised that he would provide Council with a copy of the agreement
with the appropriate sections highlighted. He also advised that he was pretty sure it would
require the City Attorney’s involvement and would, at some point, need guidance from Council
regarding what needed to be done.

The last item Mr. Stewart addressed was the T33 airplane at Lake Katherine. He stated
he had been communicating with a representative of the Air Force and had sent pictures of the
aircraft’s condition indicating it being beyond reasonable repair. He advised that the Air Force
has indicated that if Council will declare it as excess property, they can begin the process to
secure a different airplane to replace it, hopefully the same type of airplane. Mr. Stewart stated
that he would like to bring it to Council in the form of a resolution. He further stated that he
would continue to communicate with Ms. Oakes and will keep Council informed, to include all
costs.

He also stated the Fourth of July Parade was a lot of fun. Councilmember Wertz-
Strickland asked if he had heard anything from the State Road Department regarding the clean-
out of Lake Katherine. Mr. Stewart advised that he would get an update and report back to
Council with it.

PUBLIC

Tim Twohig, a county resident, expressed concern regarding the sale of fireworks to
unauthorized individuals and the enforcement of such. Mr. Stewart stated that the State of
Florida has a hypocritical approach to the sale and use of fireworks and expounded on such. He
further stated that it was almost a mission impossible and blames the State of Florida for creating
the hypocritical environment that exists.

Tod Backer, a county resident, addressed the idea of the City Parks and Recreation
Department to offer a tennis clinic for ages nine (9) and above in November on Tuesdays and
Thursdays between the hours of 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m. at the John York Tennis Courts at the
Speer Center. He stated that he would volunteer to be the instructor. Councilmember Fink asked
the City Attorney if this could be done and Mr. Wohl advised that it could be done, but that
Council should look at background checks and whether it would be considered a City event or
Mr. Backer’s event. Mr. Stewart suggested that before Council considered it, he recommended
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Mr. Backer to provide a plan, in writing, describing what is to be accomplished and how, and for
such to be brought back to Council.

Connie Bateman, a county resident, advised that on April 19, 2016, Council had
approved for volunteers, representing the City of Arcadia, to schedule events downtown. She
stated that the group’s official name was “Saturday Night Lights” and she provided a ticket to
their first event and a bag of popcorn to each Council Member. She advised they were
scheduling a music concert in November and a movie (8 Seconds) in March.

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS

Mayor Coker mentioned the Fourth of July Parade and staied it was a lot of fun and nice
to meet some of the candidates face to face

ADJOURN
Councilmember Wertz-Strickland made a motion to adjourn and Deputy Mayor Frierson
seconded the motion. No discussion followed and it was unanimously, 4/0, approved. Having

no further business at this time, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:32 P.M.

ADOPTED THIS __ DAY OF ,2016.

ATEST: By:

Susan Coker, Mayor

Penny Delaney, City Clerk
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Airport
SUBJECT: City of Arcadia Municipal Airport Report

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Approval of City of Arcadia Municipal Airport Report for the month of May
2016 as presented.

SUMMARY:

FISCAL IMPACT: () Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other

ATTACHMENTS: () Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (X) Other

Department Head: Shelley Peacock ép Date: T % - ! (_(7

Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:

City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:

City Administrator: Terry Stewart @ D Date: Z = 8-
COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended () Disapproved

() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain () Approved with Modifications




Lity of Arcadia municinal Airport

Monthly Flowage Report- May 2016

To: City Council Date: July 8, 2016

From: Shelley Peacock

AVFuel gallons sold for April 2,275.59 (including Eagle Vistas)

Eagle Vistas Gallons Pumped 510.00

Eagle Vistas does not pay 5.07 for each gallon. 1,765.59 /5.07=5123.59
Hangar Rent : $ 8379.98
Late Fees Collected $ 0.00
Vehicle Parking- $ 45.00/5% $2.25
Eagle Vistas LLC (Butler Building) $1,120.15
Eagle Vistas LLC (FBO Agreement w/ partial waiver) ' $ 844.58
Eagle Vistas Agreement w/Dean Ott $300.00/5% (Butler Building) $13.95
Tie Downs $60.00/50%=530.00

Total $10,514.50

*Special Notes*

Monthly hangar rent invoices are now generated from finance.

Fuel- Operating in MANUAL Mode due to fuel pumps down from electrical
Storm.

April  $6,403.12

+4111.38






CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Administration
SUBJECT: Application of Ernest J. Hewett, Ill Regarding the Airport Advisory Committee

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve or deny the application of Ernest J. Hewett, lll, to the
Airport Advisory Committee.

SUMMARY:
FISCAL IMPACT: () Capital Budget

() Operating

() Other
ATTACHMENTS: () Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (x)Other
Department Head: Date:
Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:
City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:
City Administrator: Terry Stewart @—' Date: 7‘ V4 ’/{_

z

COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended ( ) Disapproved

() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain () Approved with Modifications




BOARD APPLICATION

Please Print

Board Preference:  Arcadia Airport Advisory Committee

Name:  Dr. Ernest James Hewett ITI Dhatat 07/08/2016
Home Address: 3587 NW Poultry Street Zip: 34266

( ) Home
Phone: _863-993-5805 () Mobile Yrs of Arcadia residency: 26-yrs

Occupation: Consulting Systems Engineer Name of Business: YW 2YOut Enterprises

Business Address: 3587 NW Poultry Street, Arcadia, Florida 34266

Business Phone: _863-993-5805 B¢ Fax Email:
Are youretired? ( ) Yes (X No If yes, from what?

Are you currently serving on a City Board? (X) Yes ( ) No Ifyes, which one? _AAAC

Educational Background: _Ph.D. — Michigan State University — Agricultural Engineering

Civic Organizations: _BPO of Elks, Optimist International, DeSoto County Republican Executive Committee

Why do you desire to serve on this Board? _I possess an ATP certificate, former city engineer with

oversight of the airport, including designed/building of several hangars and own a multi-engine

Piper Seneca Il — stored in a hangar at the Arcadia Municipal Airport.

List Name, Address & Phone Number for three personal references:

1) Edward J. Strube 505 West Hickory Street, Arcadia, FL 863-990-8660
3) Kathryn J., Hill C.F.C 201 East Oak Street, Arcadia, FL 863-993-4861
3) Judge Don T. Hall 115 East Oak Street, Arcadia, FIL 863-993-4644

Applicant’s Signature






CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Administration

SUBJECT: Application of Glenn Walker Regarding the Airport Advisory Committee

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve or deny the application of Glenn Walker to the Airport
Advisory Committee.

SUMMARY:

FISCAL IMPACT: () Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other

ATTACHMENTS: () Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (x) Other

Department Head: Date:

Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:

City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:

City Administrator: ~ Terry Stewart @4' Date, "~ /- /[
[

COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended () Disapproved

() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain () Approved with Modifications




BOARD APPLICATION

Please Print

Board Preference: ﬂ A A C’

Name: é Senn D A/a./éL/l Date: Z:ﬂé
Home Address: 7 ( . A ik Zip: _Bi&é_
Phone: 443~ 999 - .5'01 (A f%m’e Yrs of Accadia residency: _L
Occupation: $ Aqg s #AR__ Nameof Business: VA, adra]®r
Business Address:_/ 3§ £lak KA. ég_ Dave

Business Phone: 774 =34,29 Bus. Fax__—_ Ernall ; L 2 8?4: Mg_sﬁl"
Areyoureticed? ( ) Yes () No If yes, from what?
Are you currently serving on a City Board? w Yes () No If yes, which one? 614 AC
Educational Background: /"/‘//4 b Sthes/

Civic Organizations: -_

Why do you desite to serve on this Board? _ 8 camsrt L tson aloed 7Thanri

S 728 mid 70% whiw [t wes a wm}L&#ﬁ;ggoﬂf
a_tha_n./J /- kn 72 maum_g%gllm_

List Name, Address & Phone Number for three personal references:

) Jabtw Clemonss FinsT MQ/C S2-990-1 937
»Lavidl g'ﬁa/fid ﬂmndx/y 3¢3-990~75"7/

3 &(_Tmmgﬂ&/x/ésﬁﬁxm/ V/A am&/aw‘vﬂtl) §12-253- 027“;’

Applicant’s Signature






CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning
SUBJECT: Ordinance 1016: Request for Rezoning

RECOMMENDED MOTION:
Approval

SUMMARY: City-initiated amendment to the Official Zoning Map of the City of Arcadia, Florida,
amending one (1) parcel of land (Parcel Number 31-37-25-0224-00L0-0010) totaling 0.42 acres located
at 1001 Eeast Oak Street from the zoning of City B-3 (General Business Commercial District) to PUD-C
(Planned Unit Development-Commercial).

FISCAL IMFACT: () Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other
ATTACHMENTS:  (X) Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (X)Other — Staff Report

Department Head: Date:

Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:

City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:

Interim City Administrator: Terry Stewart @ Date: 7 -,5’—/,(
COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended () Disapproved

() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain () Approved with Modifications




ORDINANCE 1016

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE
CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA, AMENDING ONE (1) PARCEL OF
LAND (PARCEL NUMBER: 31-37-25-0224-00L0-0010) TOTALING 0.42
ACRES LOCATED AT 1001 EAST OAK STREET FROM THE ZONING
OF CITY B-3 (GENERAL BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT) TO
PUD-C (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT-COMMERCIAL);
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Arcadia held meetings and hearings
regarding the parcels shown in Exhibit “A”, with due public notice having been provided, to
obtain public comment, and considered all written and oral comments received during public
hearings, including supporting documents; and

WHEREAS, in exercise of its authority the City Council has determined that the property,
as shown in Exhibit “A”, consists of approximately 0.42 acres and is the subject of this ordinance
and represents a change to the Official Zoning Map by changing the zoning classification
assigned to this property from City B-3 (General Business Commercial) to City PUD-C (Planned
Unit Development — Commercial).

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Arcadia, Florida,

Section 1. The official zoning map of the City of Arcadia is amended so as to assign
the City zoning classification of City PUD-C (Planned Unit Development - Commercial) to the
property located 1001 East Oak Street, identified by Parcel Number: 31-37-25-0224-00L0-0010
having a total of 0.42 acres, as shown in Exhibit “A” which is attached and made a part hereof.

Section 2.  Conditions: Conditions of the PUD-C zoning for the property outlined in
Exhibit “A” are set forth in Exhibit “B.”

Section 3. Site Development Plan: The Site Development Plan for the property is
provided as Exhibit “C.”

Section 4. Severability: If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by
any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 5. Certified Copy: This Ordinance shall be codified in the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Arcadia, Florida. A certified copy of this enacting ordinance shall be
located in the Office of the City Clerk of Arcadia. The City Clerk shall also make copies
available to the public for a reasonable publication charge.

Section 6. Effective Date: The effective date of this ordinance shall be the date of its
adoption.
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INTRODUCED AND PASSED on First Reading the day of , 2016.

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, on Second Reading with a quorum present and voting, by
the City Council of Arcadia, Florida, this day of , 2016.

CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

Susan Coker, Mayor

ATTEST:

Penny Delaney, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Thomas J. Wohl, City Attorney

Motion made by , seconded by

The vote was for against with abstentions and absent
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EXHIBIT “A”

CITY OF ARCADIA
PROPOSED ZONING MAP
ORDINANCE 1016
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/ Arcadia Zoning

R-1A - Single Family Residential Low #//#% PUD-| - Planned Unit Development - Industrial

R-1B - Single Family Residential Medium B-1 - Neighborhood Commercial
/4% R-AC - Single Family Residential High 7447 B-1A - Neighbarhood Commercial
R-2A - Medium Density Residential I B-2 - Central Business District
%/ %4 R-28 - Medium Density Residential I &-3 - General Business District
" 7| R-3 - High Density Residential I c-1 - Commercial
7272 R-4 - High Density Residential P-1 - Professional Office
I MHP - Mobile Home Park 7| M-1 - Light Industrial
7 RPB - Residential/Professional/Business I M-2 - General Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit Development % Unassigned

%44 PUD-C - Plann

ed Unit Development - Commercial
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EXHIBIT “B”

PUD Conditions of Approval

1. The existing automotive repair business (which conducts major automotive repair work)
may continue to operate. Ownership of the automotive repair business may change, but so
long as the character and conditions of the PUD-C do not change, the business may
continue to operate.

2. Any use requested to be established on the site in addition to the automotive repair business
(which conducts major automotive repair work), shall require review and approval by the
City under the requirements of Section 7.09.00 of the City’s Land Development Code,
which governs amendments of a PUD. Only uses permitted in the B-3 zoning district shall
be considered to operate on the site.

3. Should the automotive repair business (which conducts major automotive repair work) be
abandoned for a period of 180-days, the use shall no longer be permitted to operate on the
site, nor shall the reestablishment of an automotive repair business (which conducts major
automotive repair work) be permitted on the site. Only uses permitted in the B-3 zoning
district shall be considered to operate on the site following abandonment.

4. Should the use on the site change to a use permitted in the B-3 zoning district, the
automotive repair business (which conducts major automotive repair work) shall no longer
be permitted to operate on the site, nor shall the reestablishment of an automotive repair
business (which conducts major automotive repair work) be permitted on the site.

5. No more than three (3) inoperable vehicles (as defined in Article 2 of the City’s Land
Development Code) may be stored on the property at any given time. Any inoperable
vehicle shall be stored within the interior rear/side yard of the property and enclosed with a
6-foot opaque fence, as to not be visible from any public street, in accordance with Section
62-131 of the City’s Code of Ordinances. This shall commence within 90-days following
the effective date of this ordinance.

6. Operable vehicles (see definition of inoperable vehicle in Article 2 of the City’s Land
Development Code) needing repair may be stored on the property so long as such vehicles
do not impede on the safe access, required parking spaces and circulation of emergency
vehicles and pedestrians on the site.
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EXHIBIT “C”

Site Development Plan

—__NORTH




CITY OF ARCADIA
REZONING
OVERVIEW REPORT
July 19,2016

TO: City of Arcadia, City Council
FROM: Jeff Schmucker, Senior Planner, Central Florida Regional Planning Council
SUBJECT: Ordinance 1016 — Rezoning:
City-initiated amendment to the Official Zoning Map of the City of Arcadia,
Florida, amending one (1) parcel of land (Parcel Number 31-37-25-0224-00L0-
0010) totaling 0.42 acres located at 1001 East Oak Street from the zoning of City
B-3 (General Business Commercial District) to PUD-C (Planned Unit
Development-Commercial).
AGENDA DATES:
June 28, 2016, 4:00 PM: Planning and Zoning Board Meeting (Public Hearing)
July 19, 2016, 6:00 PM: City Council (First Reading)
August 9, 2016, 6:00 PM: City Council (Adoption, Public Hearing)
ATTACHMENTS:

e Acrial Photo Map

e Existing Future Land Use Map
e Existing Zoning Map

e Proposed Zoning Map

e Site Plan

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD ACTION:

On Tuesday, June 28, 2016, the City of Arcadia Planning & Zoning Board voted
unanimously to forward the proposed rezoning to the City Council with a
recommendation of approval.
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CITY COUNCIL MOTION OPTIONS:
1. I move the City Council approve Ordinance 1016 on First Reading.

2. I'move the City Council approve with changes Ordinance 1016 on First Reading.

OVERVIEW:

Applicant City of Arcadia

Property Owner John S. Maassen 111

Parcel IDs 31-37-25-0224-00L0-0010

Subject Area 0.42 acres

Existing Future Land Use Business

Existing Zoning B-3 (General Business Commercial District)
Proposed Zoning PUD-C (Planned Unit Development - Commercial)
Previous Hearings None

The City of Arcadia (‘applicant’) on behalf of John S Maassen IlI (‘property owner’) is
requesting a zoning amendment to change the zoning of one (1) parcel of land totaling 0.42
acres from the zoning of B-3 (General Business Commercial District) to PUD-C (Planned
Unit Development - Commercial). The subject parcel is located at 1001 East Oak Street (see
attached Aerial Photo Map).

REASON FOR REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to rezone the property to PUD-C to accommodate the continued
operation of an automotive repair shop that conducts major automotive repair work on the subject
site, in-lieu of rezoning the property to a more intensive zoning designation that would permit the
automotive repair use, but not be compatible with the surrounding area.

BACKGROUND:

In 2012, the property owner was issued a business tax license to operate an automotive repair
business on the subject site. However, issuance of a business tax license, in of itself, does not
constitute approval by the planning and zoning authority to conduct business, when the use does
not meet zoning regulations. At that time, the City’s Land Development Code (LDC) permitted
“automobile and truck repair establishments” in the B-3 zoning district, by special approval only.
However, the City does not have record of a special approval having been granted nor can the
applicant furnish proof of a special approval, thus the current operation of the automotive repair
business on the site is in violation of the City’s LDC.

Per the current LDC, adopted in February of 2014, automotive repair businesses, that conduct
major automotive repair work, are not a permitted use in the B-3 zoning district, neither by-right
or by special approval. Such use would only be permitted in C-1 (Commercial) and M-2 (Heavy
Industrial), which are more intensive land use zoning districts. Considering the location of the
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subject site and the characteristics of the surrounding area, a rezoning of C-1 or M-2 would not be
compatible with the surrounding area.

In order to allow the business to continue to operate, the City is proposing the property be rezoned
to PUD-C. Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning districts are specialized districts intended for
specific zoning and land use purposes. PUD districts are designated by land use type, which in this
case is Commercial, which is consistent with the intended use of the property.

STANDARDS FOR EVALUATION OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGES

The City of Arcadia Planning & Zoning Board will provide recommendation, and the City Council
will make a final motion to accept, reject, modify, return, or continue to seek additional
information on all proposed zoning changes. The review of all zoning changes shall be considered
and evaluated against the following standards:

e Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.
e Land Use Analysis.

e Public Facilities and Services Analysis.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:

The request is to change the zoning designation of the subject parcels from B-3 (General Business
Commercial District) to PUD-C (Planned Unit Development-Commercial). Descriptions for both
the existing and proposed zoning designations, including the description of the existing Future
Land Use are provided as follows:

Existing — Future Land Use

Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element, Policy 1.6 — Business: The
Business designation shall meet Arcadia's demand for retail goods and services,
and shall promote efficient use of infrastructure. Arcadia shall direct commercial
development to areas which are well integrated with transportation facilities and
surrounding land uses. Residential uses, such as above-ground-floor apartments,
are permissible, provided that they are compatible and appropriately integrated
with the surrounding area. Schools are permitted in this classification. The floor
area ratio in the Business designation shall not exceed 3.0.

Existing — Zoning

City Land Development Code, Section 4.06.04.04 — B-3 (General Business
Commercial District): The B-3, General Business Commercial district, is
intended to apply to business establishments, primarily not of a neighborhood or
community service type, which may properly be located to serve large regions of
the city and metropolitan area. Such businesses generally require considerable
ground area, do not cater directly to pedestrians and need a conspicuous and
accessible location convenient for motorists.
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Proposed -Zoning

City Land Development Code, Section 4.06.06 — PUD (Planned Unit Development):
Planned Unit Development (PUD) districts are intended for specialized purposes, where a
proposed project warrants greater flexibility than a standard district provides; when the
Comprehensive Plan requires a Planned Unit Development review process; or when the
ability to attach conditions to a site plan is warranted. The PUD district is established to
provide for well-planned and/or orderly mixed-use development in any area of the City,
except Conservation districts. The process for obtaining PUD zoning, and PUD
development requirements, are provided in Article 7 of this Code.

Section 7.04.03 of the City’s Land Development Code describes the purpose, location, and
permitted uses for properties designated as Planned Unit Development — Commercial (PUD-C).

Purpose: 1t is the intent of these regulations to provide for commercial development in
scale with surrounding market areas, at appropriate locations, in conformance with the
goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and the standards set forth
herein. It is further the intent to permit such districts where Master Site Plan design
will allow for internal convenience and ease of use, as well as external compatibility.
PUD-C districts may provide a broad range of commercial facilities and services
appropriate to the general need of the area served.

Location: PUD-C districts shall be located to facilitate ease and convenience of use.
Negative impacts on the surrounding transportation systems, public services, and
surrounding land uses shall be minimized; the use shall be compatible with
surrounding land uses; the intensity of the project shall be consistent with the use it
provides; and the development shall not encourage the expansion of office or
commercial strip development along adjacent streets.

Permitted Uses: Uses in PUD-C districts shall be consistent with Comprehensive Plan
requirements. Uses and structures which are customarily and clearly incidental to
permitted principal uses and structures shall be also permitted.

The PUD-C zoning is compatible with the Business Future Land Use designation, consistent with
the goals, objectives, and policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and will provide the
necessary flexibility to recognize the continued use of the automotive repair business on the
property, without compromising the character of the surrounding area.

Land Use Analysis

The subject property has a Future Land Use of Business and zoning of B-3, and is completely
surrounded by lands with the same designations. Nearby uses on adjacent B-3 properties include
strip retail, a restaurant and vacant properties. The existing building on the site is an old service
station with two (2) service repair bays. According to the DeSoto County Property Appraiser the
building, including the service bays was originally constructed in 1960.
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A Land Use Matrix is provided below outlining the existing and proposed zoning of the subject
property and the existing zoning of adjacent properties. Existing Future Land Use and Existing
and Proposed Zoning Maps are also attached to provide visual reference.

Land Use Matrix

Northwest (across N Rogers Ave) North Northeast
Future Land Use: Future Land Use: Future Land Use:
Business Business Business
Zoning: Zoning: Zoning:

B-3 (General Business B-3 (General Business B-3 (General Business
Commercial) Commercial) Commercial)
West (across N Rogers Ave) Subject Parcels East
Future Land Use:
Future Land Use: Business Future Land Use:
Business Zoning: Business
Zoning: Existing: Zoning:

B-3 (General Business B-3 (Professional Office) B-3 (General Business

Commercial) Proposed: PUD-C (Planned Unit Commercial)

Development - Commercial)

Southwest
(across E. Qak St./SR 70)

South
(across E. Oak St./SR 70)

Southeast
(across E. Qak St./SR 70)

Future Land Use:
Business

Zoning:
B-3 (General Business Commercial)

Future Land Use:

Business

Zoning:

B-3 (General Business Commercial)

Future Land Use:
Business

Zoning:
B-3 (General Business Commercial)

Although the existing automotive repair business is not a permitted use in the B-3 district, the
building serving the use clearly facilitates the operation of an automotive repair business.
Currently, the business does not pose any negative impacts on surrounding properties and as such
the City is considering a rezoning of the property to allow the continued operation of the business
on the site. The PUD-C designation is being proposed in-lieu of rezoning the property to a higher
intensity zoning (e.g., C-1 or M-2), which will prevent higher intensity uses from establishing on
the property in the future. Conditions to address the current use and future use of the site are
provided for consideration in the section “Conditions of Planned Unit Development Approval”
below.

Public Facilities and Services Analysis:

The following is a summary analysis of the potential impacts on existing public facilities and
services:

Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer and Solid Waste: Considering the site is already developed and

no new development is proposed as part of the request, and public facilities and services are
already being utilized on the site, no additional impacts are anticipated.
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Traffic/Transportation: The primary roadways serving the subject property are East Oak Street
(SR 70) and North Rogers Avenue. The proposed zoning and continued use of the subject property
are not anticipated to have any negative impacts on traffic and transportation systems beyond the
impacts currently experienced under the current B-3 zoning.

Public School and Recreational Facilities: There is no public school or recreational facility
impacts, as the proposed zoning does not provide for residential development on the property.

CONDITIONS OF PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL:

Under the PUD-C zoning, conditions may be established on the property specific to the permitted
types of uses on the site, the expiration of uses on the site and any other reasonable conditions as
may be necessary to ensure compliance with the City’s LDC. Conditions for consideration,
specific to this request are provided below:

1. The existing automotive repair business (which conducts major automotive repair work) may
continue to operate. Ownership of the automotive repair business may change, but so long as
the character and conditions of the PUD-C do not change, the business may continue to
operate.

2. Any use requested to be established on the site in addition to the automotive repair business
(which conducts major automotive repair work), shall require review and approval by the
City under the requirements of Section 7.09.00 of the City’s Land Development Code, which
governs amendments of a PUD. Only uses permitted in the B-3 zoning district shall be
considered to operate on the site.

3. Should the automotive repair business (which conducts major automotive repair work) be
abandoned for a period of 180-days, the use shall no longer be permitted to operate on the
site, nor shall the reestablishment of an automotive repair business (which conducts major
automotive repair work) be permitted on the site. Only uses permitted in the B-3 zoning
district shall be considered to operate on the site following abandonment.

4. Should the use on the site change to a use permitted in the B-3 zoning district, the
automotive repair business (which conducts major automotive repair work) shall no longer
be permitted to operate on the site, nor shall the reestablishment of an automotive repair
business (which conducts major automotive repair work) be permitted on the site.

5. No more than three (3) inoperable vehicles (as defined in Article 2 of the City’s Land
Development Code) may be stored on the property at any given time. Any inoperable vehicle
shall be stored within the interior rear/side yard of the property and enclosed with a 6-foot
opaque fence, as to not be visible from any public street, in accordance with Section 62-131
of the City’s Code of Ordinances. This shall commence within 90-days following the
effective date of this ordinance.

6. Operable vehicles (see definition of inoperable vehicle in Article 2 of the City’s Land
Development Code) needing repair may be stored on the property so long as such vehicles
do not impede on the safe access, required parking spaces and circulation of emergency
vehicles and pedestrians on the site.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning
SUBJECT: Ordinance 1017: Request for Future Land Use Map Amendment

RECOMMENDED MOTION:
Approval

SUMMARY: Applicant-initiated request to amend the Future Land Use and zoning maps of the City of
Arcadia, Florida, amending two (2) parcels of land (Parcel Numbers 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000 and 30-
37-25-0A00-1270-0000) totaling 5.3 acres, generally located to the west of North DeSoto Avenue (US 17)
and south of unimproved right-of-way (Frankfort Street) from the Future Land Use of City Low Density
Residential to City Business.

FISCAL IMPACT: () Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other
ATTACHMENTS:  (X) Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (X) Other — Staff Report

Department Head: Date:

Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:

City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:

Interim City Administrator: Terry Stewart @//‘ Date: /-Y-//
COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended ( ) Disapproved

() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain () Approved with Modifications




ORDINANCE 1017

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE
CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA, AMENDING TWO (2) PARCELS OF LAND
(PARCEL NUMBERS: 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000 AND 30-37-25-0A00-1270-
0000) TOTALING 5.3 ACRES GENERALLY LOCATED TO THE WEST OF
NORTH DESOTO AVENUE (US 17) AND SOUTH OF UNIMPROVED
RIGHT-OF-WAY (FRANKFORT STREET) FROM THE FUTURE LAND
USE OF CITY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO CITY BUSINESS;
TRANSMITTING SAID AMENDMENT TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR NOTIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, the Community Planning Act,
empowers and mandates the City of Arcadia, Florida, to plan for future development and growth
and to adopt and amend comprehensive plans, or elements, or portions thereof, to guide the
future growth and development of the City; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 163.3187, Florida Statutes, the City Council held
meetings and hearings on Future Land Use Map Amendment as shown in Exhibit “A”, with due
public notice having been provided, to obtain public comment, and considered all written and
oral comments received during public hearings, including support documents; and

WHEREAS, in exercise of its authority the City Council has determined it necessary to
adopt this Map Amendment to the Comprehensive Plan, which is marked as Exhibit "A" and
attached and made a part hereof, to ensure that the Plan is in full compliance with the Laws of
the State of Florida; to preserve and enhance present advantages; encourage the most appropriate
use of land, water and resources consistent with the public interest; and deal effectively with
future problems that may result from the use and development of land within the City of Arcadia;
and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Arcadia, Florida,

Section 1. The Future Land Use Map is amended so as to assign the Future Land Use
classification of “City Business” to the parcels generally located to the west of North DeSoto
Avenue (US 17) and south of unimproved right-of-way (Frankfort Street), identified by Parcel
Numbers: 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000 and 30-37-25-0A00-1270-0000 having a cumulative total
of 5.3 acres, as shown in Exhibit “A” which is attached and made a part hereof.

Section 2.  Severability: If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by

any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section3.  Certified Copy: A certified copy of this enacting ordinance and certified
copy of the City of Arcadia Comprehensive Plan shall be located in the Office of the City Clerk
of Arcadia. The City Clerk shall also make copies available to the public for a reasonable
publication charge.



Ordinance 1017
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Section 4. Effective Date: This plan amendment shall be effective in accordance
with Section 163.3187(5)(c), Florida Statutes.

INTRODUCED AND PASSED on First Reading the day of ,2016.

PASSED AND DULY ADGPTED, on Second Reading with a quorum present and voting, by

the City Council of Arcadia, Florida, this day of ,2016.
CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA
Susan Coker, Mayor

ATTEST:

Penny Delaney, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Thomas J. Wohl, City Attorney

Motion made by , seconded by

The vote was for against with abstentions and absent
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning
SUBJECT: Ordinance 1018: Request for Rezoning

RECOMMENDED MOTION:
Approval

SUMMARY: Applicant-initiated request to amend the Future Land Use and zoning maps of the City of
Arcadia, Florida, amending two (2) parcels of land (Parcel Numbers 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000 and 30-
37-25-0A00-1270-0000) totaling 5.3 acres, generally located to the west of North DeSoto Avenue (US 17)
and south of unimproved right-of-way (Frankfort Street) from the zoning of County Unassigned and City
R-3 (Single Family, Two Family, and Multiple Family Residential) to City B-3 (General Business

Commercial).

FISCAL IMPACT:

() Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other

ATTACHMENTS:  (X) Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (X) Other —Staff Report

Department Head:
Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements)

City Attorney (As to Form and Legality)

Interim City Administrator: Terry Stewart /—Q/

Date:
Date:

Date:

Date: / -5/«

e —

COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended
() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain

() Disapproved
() Approved with Modifications



ORDINANCE 1018

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE
CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA, AMENDING TWO (2) PARCELS OF
LAND (PARCEL NUMBERS: 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000 AND 30-37-25-
0A00-1270-0000) TOTALING 5.3 ACRES GENERALLY LOCATED TO
THE WEST OF NORTH DESOTO AVENUE (US 17) AND SOUTH OF
UNIMPROVED RIGHT-OF-WAY (FRANKFORT STREET) FROM THE
ZONING OF COUNTY UNASSIGNED AND CITY R-3 (SINGLE FAMILY,
TWO FAMILY, AND MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) TO CITY B-3
(GENERAL BUSINESS COMMERCIAL); PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Arcadia held meetings and hearings
regarding the parcels shown in Exhibit “A”, with due public notice having been provided, to
obtain public comment, and considered all written and oral comments received during public
hearings, including supporting documents; and

WHEREAS, in exercise of its authority, the City Council of the City of Arcadia has
determined it necessary to amend the Official Zoning Map to change the City zoning
classification assigned to this parcel.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Arcadia, Florida,

Section 1.  The official zoning map of the City of Arcadia is amended so as to assign
the City zoning classification of City B-3 (General Business Commercial District) to the parcels
generally located to the west of North DeSoto Avenue (US 17) and south of unimproved right-
of-way (Frankfort Street), identified by Parcel Numbers: 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000 and 30-37-
25-0A00-1270-0000 having a cumulative total of 5.3 acres, as shown in Exhibit “A” which is
attached and made a part hereof. '

Section 2. Severability: If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by
any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3.  Certified Copy: This Ordinance shall be codified in the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Arcadia, Florida. A certified copy of this enacting ordinance shall be
located in the Office of the City Clerk of Arcadia. The City Clerk shall also make copies
available to the public for a reasonable publication charge.

Section 4. Effective Date: The effective date of this ordinance shall be the date of its
adoption.
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INTRODUCED AND PASSED on First Reading the day of , 2016.

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, on Second Reading with a quorum present and voting, by
the City Council of Arcadia, Florida, this day of ,2016.

CITY OF ARCADIA, FLORIDA

Susan Coker, Mayor

ATTEST:

Penny Delaney, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Thomas J. Wohl, City Attorney

Motion made by , seconded by

The vote was for against with abstentions and absent
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CITY OF ARCADIA
FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT AND REZONING
OVERVIEW REPORT
July 19, 2016

TO: City of Arcadia, City Council
FROM: Jeff Schmucker, Senior Planner, Central Florida Regional Planning Council

SUBJECT: Ordinance 1017 — Future Land Use Map Amendment:

Ordinance 1018 — Rezoning:

Applicant-initiated request to amend the Future Land Use and zoning maps
of the City of Arcadia, Florida, amending two (2) parcels of land (Parcel
Numbers 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000 and 30-37-25-0A00-1270-0000)
totaling 5.3 acres, generally located to the west of North DeSoto Avenue
(US 17) and south of unimproved right-of-way (Frankfort Street) from the
Future Land Use of City Low Density Residential to City Business and
from the zoning of County Unassigned and City R-3 (Single Family, Two
Family, and Multiple Family Residential) to City B-3 (General Business
Commercial).

AGENDA DATES:
June 28, 2016, 4:00 PM: Planning and Zoning Board Meeting (Public Hearing)
July 19, 2016, 6:00 PM: City Council (First Reading)
August 9, 2016, 6:00 PM: City Council (Adoption, Public Hearing)

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD ACTION:
On Tuesday, June 28, 2016, the City of Arcadia Planning & Zoning Board voted
unanimously to forward the proposed Future Land Use Map Amendment and rezoning to
the City Council with a recommendation of approval.

The recommendation included a change of the proposed zoning from C-1

(Commercial) to a proposed zoning of B-3 (General Business Commercial). The
proposed B-3 zoning is consistent with the proposed Business Future Land Use.
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CITY COUNCIL MOTION OPTIONS:
Options for motions are listed below.

Ordinance 1017 — Future Land Use Map Amendment

1. I move the City Council approve Ordinance 1017 on First Reading.

2. I'move the City Council approve with changes Ordinance 1017 on First Reading.

Ordinance 1018 — Rezoning

1. I 'move the City Council approve Ordinance 1018 on First Reading.

2. I'move the City Council approve with changes Ordinance 1018 on First Reading.

ATTACHMENTS:

e Aerial Photo Map

e Existing Future Land Use Map
e Proposed Future Land Use Map
e Existing Zoning Map
¢ Proposed Zoning Map
e Application
OVERVIEW:
Applicant Gary Frierson
Property Owner G AN A INC.
Parcel ID 30-37-25-0A00-1240-0000
arcel 10s 30-37-25-0A00-1270-0000
Subject Area 5.3 acres
Existing Future Land Use Low Density Residential
Proposed Future Land Use | Business
Existing Zoning R-3 (Single Family, Two Family, and Multiple Family Residential)
Proposed Zoning B-3 (General Business Commercial)
Previous Hearings None

Gary Frierson (‘applicant’) is requesting a Future Land Use and zoning map amendment to
change the Future Land Use and zoning of two (2) parcels of land totaling 5.3 acres from the
Future Land Use of City Low Density Residential to City Business and from the zoning of
County Unassigned and City R-3 (Single Family, Two Family, and Multiple Family
Residential) to City B-3 (General Business Commercial). The subject parcels are generally
located to the west of North DeSoto Avenue (US 17) and south of unimproved right-of-way
(Frankfort Street). See attached Aerial Photo Map.
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REASON FOR REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to update the City’s Future Land Use and zoning maps to assign the
appropriate designations to allow for future commercial development on the subject parcels.

The applicant’s initial request was for a rezoning to C-1 (Commercial). Following review by
planning staff it was suggested that the applicant consider a rezoning to B-3 (General
Business Commercial) due to certain uses that are permitted under the C-1 that would be
incompatible with the surrounding area. The B-3 zoning is consistent with the proposed
Business Future Land Use. The change was discussed and agreed upon with the applicant
prior to the Planning and Zoning Board meeting on June 28, 2016. The Planning and Zoning
Board provided a recommendation of approval to the City Council to rezone the property to
B-3.

STANDARDS FOR EVALUATION OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGES

The City of Arcadia Planning & Zoning Board will provide recommendation, and the City Council
will make a final motion to accept, reject, modify, return, or continue to seek additional
information on all proposed zoning changes. The review of all zoning changes shall be considered
and evaluated against the following standards:

e Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.
o Land Use Analysis.

e Public Facilities and Services Analysis.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:

The request is to change the Future Land Use and zoning of the subject parcels from City Low
Density Residential to City Business and from the zoning of County Unassigned and City R-3
(Single Family, Two Family, and Multiple Family Residential) to City C-1 (Commercial).
Descriptions for both the existing and proposed Future Land Use and zoning designations are
provided as follows:

Existing — Future Land Use

Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element, Policy 1.3 — Low Density
Residential: The Low Density Residential designation shall meet Arcadia's
housing demands for this range of density, promote efficient use of infrastructure,
protect existing single family neighborhoods and promote compatible land uses.
Single family detached housing units are permissible to a maximum density of 6
units per gross acre; and schools are permitted in this classification. Development
of areas designated as wetlands are restricted to only residential development at
not more than 1 dwelling unit per 5 acres, and provided all requirements of Policy
3.1 of the Conservation Element are met.
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Proposed — Future Land Use

Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element, Policy 1.6 — Business: The
Business designation shall meet Arcadia's demand for retail goods and services,
and shall promote efficient use of infrastructure. Arcadia shall direct commercial
development to areas which are well integrated with transportation facilities and
surrounding land uses. Residential uses, such as above-ground-floor apartments,
are permissible, provided that they are compatible and appropriately integrated
with the surrounding area. Schools are permitted in this classification. The floor
area ratio in the Business designation shall not exceed 3.0.
Existing — Zoning

City Land Development Code, Section 4.06.01.05 — R-3 (Single Family, Two
Family, and Multiple Family Residential District): The purpose of this district
is to provide areas for single-lot principal building residential development
consisting of single family, two family, and multiple family dwellings. Minimum
lot area is determined by housing type; such standards are provided in Article 5.

Proposed -Zoning

City Land Development Code, Section 4.06.04.04 — B-3 (General Business
Commercial): The B-3, General Business Commercial district, is intended to
apply to business establishments, primarily not of a neighborhood or community
service type, which may properly be located to serve large regions of the city and
metropolitan area. Such businesses generally require considerable ground area, do
not cater directly to pedestrians and need a conspicuous and accessible location
convenient for motorists.

The subject parcels are located along the US 17 corridor which is a transitioning corridor from single-
family residential uses to commercial and business uses. The proposed Future Land Use and zoning
target the City’s goals, objectives, and policies of the Future Land Use element of the City’s
Comprehensive Plan, specifically Policy 1.6, by providing opportunities to direct future commercial
development to areas which are well integrated with transportation facilities and surrounding land
uses.

Land Use Analysis

The subject parcels are located along the transitioning US 17 corridor. Properties abutting the
subject parcels are primarily residentially-zoned properties that include some developed residential
properties, vacant undeveloped properties, pasture land, a property with a broadcasting
communication tower. There are also several City-owned properties nearby which facilitate City
Park & Recreation uses. Properties located along the east side of the southbound lanes of US 17
and along both sides of the northbound lanes of US 17 are primarily businesses and commercial
uses, typical of the general character of the area.

The Land Use Matrix below outlines the existing and proposed Future Land Use and zoning of the
subject parcels and the existing Future Land Use and zoning of adjacent properties. Descriptions of the
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existing land uses are also provided. Existing and Proposed Future Land Use and Zoning Maps are

attached for reference.

Land Use Matrix

Northwest North Northeast
(Across Unimproved ROW (Across Unimproved ROW (Across Unimproved ROW
— Frankifort Street — Frankfort Street) — Frankfort Street

Future Land Use:
Low Density Residential

Zoning:
R-1B

Existing Land Use:
Vacant lands

Future Land Use:
Low Density Residential

Zoning:
R-1B
Existing Land Use:

Vacant lands & one (1) single-family
home

Future Land Use:
Low Density Residential

Zoning:
R-1B

Existing Land Use:
Vacant lands

West

Subject Parcels

East
(Across US 17)

Future Land Use:
Low Density Residential

Zoning:

R-1A

Existing Land Use:
Single-family residential and
vacant lands

Future Land Use:
Existing: Low Density Residential

Proposed: Business

Zoning:
Existing: County Unassigned & City R-3

Proposed: City B-3

Existing Land Use:
Vacant

Future Land Use:
Business

Zoning:
B-3

Existing Land Use:
Hotel/motel

Southwest

South

Southeast
(Across US 17)

Future Land Use:
Low Density Residential

Zoning:

R-1A

Existing Land Use:
Communication tower &
municipal uses

Future Land Use:
Low Density Residential

Zoning:

R-TA

Existing Land Use:
Communication tower, pasture land, &
municipal uses

Future Land Use:
Business

Zoning:
B-3

Existing Land Use:
Building supply store

The proposed Business Future Land Use and B-3 zoning are consistent with the character and
transitioning nature of the area and would provide future business and commercial opportunities
supporting economic development within the City.

Further review of land use impacts will be evaluated at the time that site development is initiated. The

additional review would serve to ensure compatibility and concurrency of public facilities and services
with any proposed development.
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Public Facilities and Services Analysis:

The following is a summary analysis of potential impacts on existing public facilities and services:

Potable Water: City water is available nearby to serve the subject property. The City’s adopted
level of service for supply of potable water is 102 gallons per person per day. Based on the City’s
public supply annual report submitted to the Southwest Florida Water Management District for
reporting period January | through December 31, 2015, the City is currently operating at 83
gallons per day per person which is below the adopted level of service standard. The proposed
Future Land Use and zoning changes do not pose any negative impacts on the City’s current water
system. Connection(s) for potable water will be reviewed at the time that site development is
initiated.

Sanitary Sewer: City sewer is not currently available on the site. However, the City’s adopted level
of service for wastewater generation is 171 gallons per person per day. Based on the per person
average daily consumption of potable water, wastewater processing is estimated to be well below the
adopted level of service. The proposed Future Land Use and zoning changes do not pose any
negative impacts on the City’s current wastewater system. Connection(s) for wastewater will be
reviewed at the time that site development is initiated.

Solid Waste: Solid waste collection in the City of Arcadia amounts to approximately 2.23 pounds per
person per day, which is below the City’s adopted level of service standard of 4.8 pounds per person
per day. The proposed Future Land Use and zoning changes do not pose any negative impacts on
the City’s solid waste collection services.

Traffic/Transportation: The primary roadway that would serve the subject parcels is North
DeSoto Avenue (US 17) to the east. Frankfort Street which also abuts the subject properties on the
north is an unimproved right-of-way that runs between US 17 to the east and North Arcadia
Avenue to the west. Any future development on the site will likely develop access directly onto
US 17 or through an access driveway off of Frankfort Street via an intersection improvement at
US 17 and Frankfort Street. It’s not anticipated that the full length of Frankfort Street would be
improved as part of any future development of this site. The limit of such improvement of
Frankfort Street would reduce any negative impacts on residential uses to the west near the
Frankfort Street/North Arcadia Avenue intersection.

At the time that site development is initiated, detailed traffic and access management conditions will
be required to be reviewed prior to any site development approvals and issuance of building permits.

Public School and Recreational Facilities: There are no public school or recreational facility
impacts, as the proposed Future Land Use and zoning do not provide for residential development.
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COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT

Date Stamp
APPLICATION FEREVED
City of Arcadia Florida ,
Community Development MAY 0 5 RECD
Fees: Large scale - $1,450.%° 23 Polk Avenue North CITY Or ARCADIA

Small scale - $1,025.° Arcadia, FL 34266

(863) 494-4114

Fieno.: 16 - O CP

R# City Website: arcadia-fl.gov

The Arcadia Cornprehensive Plan is a long-range regulatory document that helps determines community goals and
aspirations for managing growth in terms of land use, utilities, transportation, recreation, and housing. The Future Land
Use Map (FLUM) is a regulatory map included as part of the plan. The plan and FLUM delineates the allowable
categories of land uses, including what uses, intensity or density may be established on each parcel within the city.

APPLICANT'S INFORMATION

(Agent or Contractor)

Name: GA\TL&»& FIOIENSo A

Organization:

Address: _ ) MopaH LuTHER  aAvEE
- City: AR snin
state: [ |- Zip Code: 3L L

Telephone No.: (%LS ) 558 ©S4 5

PROPERTY OWNER’S INFORMATION
(Leave Blank if Same as Applicant)

Name: C; Ay A iae

Organization:

Address: ] NMomIH

LuTHER AvE

City: ANCAD(A

State: _/~ L Zip Code: __3MA\ &

RS

Telephone No.: (3{0’5 )_ A5 &

Email: FRIERSOA 1990 @ 6 MmN\ AN gmail: FUIERSOA 1Y\ R Gamay) * CoMms

I.  Type of Plan Amendment Proposed:

Small Scale. Any change in the Future Land Use Map that involves land areas of 10 acres or less OR densities of
10 dwelling units per acre or less.

O Large Scale. Any change in the text of the Comprehensive Plan, or any change in the Future Land Use Map that
involves land areas greater than 10 acres OR more than 10 dwelling units per acre.

Il.  Property Information

Parcel Adldress (if assigned): /O & AS5 16 AL D
@'So_-'s}.--z_s.__oﬁ-oo—- 12 FO0 — oo2o
Parcel Idantification Number@ 3 © - 37~ 25 - 0 AP - 1dW\0 -~oLovo

LaaDs Aot DAVIDED

ACLES -
AL lubise N Tt T 5. AcRES

Subdivision, Block and Lot Nos.:
@ \|.e0
Property Size (in acres):® Y . & 4




. Regulatory and Land Use Information
l% Low DERETY RESIDESTIA-

hY

Adopted Future Land Use Map Designation:

Proposed Future Land Use Map Designation: C>(]: Posi NESS

For Large Scale Text Amendments, please include proposed text changes in legislative format (strike through-
underlined) and indicate chapter and policy numbers.

V.  Development Activity Proposed

O Residential X commercial Q office/Professional Q Industrial

Other

Expected Total Resideptial Units: _—~O —

Residential Density: Dwellings Units / Per Acre="—_< -

Expected Total Square Footage of All Non-Residential Structures (retail, office, warehouse): 2-Y VOO

V.  Transportation Access Information

Roadways that serve the property: N. DeSoo __Aave (Nw% 11 SooTH _Bouvad ‘-'/V"@)

Identify proposed curb cuts (connection of new roads, driveways, turn-lanes) that are anticipated to the
following roadways:

Divewaw Cewacction To Nowrh DeSoh ave (Hey 0 )

Vl.  Projected Impact to Public Facilities and Services

In an effort to better anticipate utility service usage and project level of service impacts, please indicate
expected service volumes and infrastructure needs based upon any predevelopment plans or expectations:

Potable Water: A0 &+ &

Sanitary Sewer: ___ MO A &

Reclaimed Irrigation or Grey Water: A~ 0.4 (5

Public School and Enroliment Projections: __ Ao A &~

Known Wellhead or Environmental Protection Zones: As0p

Any Special Needs Population: Ao O M (S

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application Updated on 2/2013



REZONING APPLICATION

Date Stomp
(ZONING MAP AMENDMENT) RECEIVED
City of Arcadia Florida
Community Development MAY ¢ 5 RECD
23 Polk Avenue North
CITY OF ARCADIA

Arcadia, FL 34266

00
Fee $1,250. (863) 494-4114

City Website: arcadia-fl.gov fleno.: 16 - D2 RZ

R#

The purpose of zoning is to locate particular land uses where they are most appropriate, considering public utilities, road
access, and the astablished development pattern. The Zoning Map regulates allowable land uses within the City through
the creation of land use districts or zones, and then assigns individual parcels to a particular zoning district. A rezoning is
a change in the zoning district designation for a property. The rezoning process exists to allow property owners to
change the zoning ciistrict designation of their property to another zoning classification or land development regulations
which may impact property use standards.

APPLICANT'S INFORMATION
(Agent or Contractor)

PROPERTY OWNER’S INFORMATION
(Leave Blank if Same as Applicant)

| Name: GATLL& e nrgo~ Name:_ &G av A 17 ¢ -
Organization: | Organization:
Address: | W o T H LorHEL Av& J " Address: I NenrnTH LuTéteiz  Ave
City:__ARCAadn ; | City: A cania

| State: __I= 1. Zip Code: _ 9 4L L || State: 1~ I Zip Code: 9 MabLL

Telephone No.: ( §6% ) 558 0346

Telephone No.: ( 565 ) § 55 - 0345

Email: SR I1GE R5o~ LUl @ G pn'y| - Com Email; /-~ RIERSC~14) @ G /M A\l)\  CON

I.  Property Information

Parcel Address (if assigned): _/ VY ca & ALS 16 N D
O 30-32- 28 — QACO — |2FO - Coe®

Parcel Identification Number:@ 30 301-246- phoo = 1AMo~ Voo L

DIVIDE D
> o™ML = 5.2 AckeEs

Subdivision, Block and Lot Nos.: Lana NS A ST
@ |- oo AT RES

Property Size (in acres): _(Z) M. A4 Acn 6§

Existing land use of subject property: _Av v & vrDeveloped  QPRropenTw




Il.  Regulatory and Land Use Information of Subject Property

ProfasEr
Future Land Use Map Designation: ’BX?’ THLSI NESS

Adopted Zoning Map Designation: N-2 & Cov NTY URASS G BE

Proposed Zoning Map Designation: C- )

is the subject property adjacent to or nearby other similar zoned districts to the district being sought?

ONo O VYes, please list zoning districts:

iil. Proposed Development Activity

O Residential ¥ Commercial QO Office/Professional O Other
Expected Total Residential Units: — (2 -~ Residential Density: Dwellings Units / Per Acre=_Q —

Expected Total Square Footage of All Non-Residential (retail, office, warehouse) Structures: Q QLo - \{: Qo

IV.  Transportation Access Information

Identify primary roadways that serve the subject property: Mongr DsSobw_ave ( Ry “\J\

Has a recent transportation and parking demand study been performed: @ No OYes

How many existing parking spaces are dedicated to the project site:-0Q -~ YR eatly yrDelE lo Py

Identify roadways that are anticipated to be impacted through project site plan improvements:

Driveways: M\ 106 Soto AV Turn lanes:_ Mo Plam

Intersection Improvements: _/NMOA S ~ #0 OPC KOANS A Dncaj @720 gphd\

V. Projected Impacts to Public Facllities and Services

In an effort to better anticipate utility service usage and project level of service impacts, please indicate
expected service volumes and infrastructure needs based upon any predevelopment plans or expectations:

Potable Water, change in ERUs: __ . A0 &

Sanitary Sewer, change in ERUs: -V Qv b

Public School and Enroliment Projections: Ao Al

Known Environmental or Wellhead Protection Zones: ___A-¢ &~ &%

Rezoning Application (Zoning Map Amendment) Updated on 1/2014
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date:

July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Administration
SUBJECT: T-33 Monument Aircraft

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to declare the T-33 monument aircraft located at Lake Kathrine as
excess property for disposal as determined by the US Airforce and to Petition the Air Force for a
replacement aircraft.

SUMMARY:

1. The T-33 monument aircraft located at Lake Kathrine was badly damaged as a result of
hurricane Charlie and the canopy was blown away and lost during the storm.

2. The condition of the aircraft has continued to deteriorate in the intervening years and is now
such that restoring it will be extremely costly.

3. Finding a canopy to utilize in a restoration has been difficult. After some months of searching
one has been located with a purchase price of approximately $1,500 and does not include
shipping from California.

4. The City Administrator has been in correspondence with the Air Force program head regarding
this matter and has learned that it is possible to attain a replacement aircraft.

FISCAL IMPACT: () Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other

ATTACHMENTS: () Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (x)Other

Department Head: Date:

Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:

City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:

City Administrator: Terry Stewart @’_ Date: 7-8-2016
COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended () Disapproved

() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain ( ) Approved with Modifications







CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

SUBJECT: City Administrator Performance Evaluation

RECOMMENDED MOTION: No motion needed. For report only.

SUMMARY: Attached report details the City Administrator Performance Evaluation for the time of June

2015 = June 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS: () Ordinance () Resolution ()Budget (x)Other

() Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other

Department Head: Linda Lowe :%ij\
Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements)
City Attorney (As to Form and Legality)

City Administrator: Terry Stewart

Date: 07/07/2016
Date:

Date:

Date: /- .-S'/'/K

COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended
() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain

() Disapproved
() Approved with Modifications



REPORT
CITY ADMINISTRATOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

RATING CRITERIA: E - Exceeds Expectations
M — Meets Expectations
NI — Needs Improvement

CRITERIA TOTAL RESPONSES PERCENTAGE

Communication Skills 15 Possible
Exceeds Expectations 15 100%
Meets Expectations 0
Needs Improvement 0

Interpersonal Skills/Relationships 40 Possible
Exceeds Expectations 26 65%
Meets Expectations 14 35%
Needs Improvement 0

Leadership 45 Possible
Exceeds Expectations 37 82%
Meets Expectations 8 18%
Needs Improvement 0

Planning 25 Possible
Exceeds Expectations 19 76%
Meets Expectations 6 24%
Needs Improvement 0

Management/Staff 25 Possible
Exceeds Expectations 22 88%
Meets Expectations 3 12%
Needs Improvement 0

Overall Rating 150 Possible
Exceeds Expectations 119 79%
Meets Expectations 31 21%
Needs Improvement 0






CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Requested Council Meeting Date: July 19, 2016

DEPARTMENT: Finance
SUBJECT: 2016-17 Tentative Millage Rate Adoption

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to Adopt Tentative Millage Rate and to set date for the first public
budget hearing.

SUMMARY: Attached are 2016-17 Millage Rate options. Option 1: Rolled Back Rate; Option 2: Adopt
the same rate as the City adopted for 2015-16 year. Staff will have draft budget numbers at the
7/19/2016 meeting which will show how each of these options will affect the overall budget.

FISCAL IMPACT: () Capital Budget
() Operating
() Other
ATTACHMENTS: () Ordinance () Resolution () Budget (X )Other
Department Head: Beth Carsten Poc Date: )—&¥- L
Finance Director (As to Budget Requirements) Date:

City Attorney (As to Form and Legality) Date:

City Administrator: @/ Date: 7-§&-/(

r 3

COUNCIL ACTION: () Approved as Recommended () Disapproved
() Tabled Indefinitely () Tabled to Date Certain ( ) Approved with Modifications




2015-16 Adopted

2015 Adopted Millage % 8.8195
Adopted Ad Valorem 1,569,126.00
Actual Received to date: 1,526,675.00
2016-17 Proposed
Option 1: Rolled Back Rate
Rolled Back Rate 8.8310
2016 Taxable Value 177,682,991
2016 Gross Taxable Value 178,316,602
Estimated Ad Valorem 1,574,714
95% 1,495,978
Option 2: Adopt 2015-16 Millage Rate
2015 Rate: 8.8195
2016 Taxable Value 177,682,991
2016 Gross Taxable Value 178,316,602
Estimated Ad Valorem 1,572,663

95%

1,494,030




g I Reset Form l I Print Form

:; DR-420

: CERTIFICATION OF TAXABLE VALUE —l

& Florida Administrative Code
FLORIDA Effective 11/12
Year: 2016 County:  DESOTO

Principal Authority :
CITY OF ARCADIA

Taxing Authority :
CITY OF ARCADIA

SECTIONI: COMPLETED BY PROPERTY APPRAISER
1. |Current year taxable value of real property for operating purposes S 151,890,721 | (1)
2. |Current year taxable value of personal property for operating purposes $ 26,067,920 | (2)
3. |Current year taxable value of centrally assessed property for operating purposes S 357,961 | (3)
4. |Current year gross taxable value for operating purposes (Line 1 plus Line 2 plus Line 3) |$ 178,316,602 | (4)
Current year net new taxable value (Add new construction, additions, rehabilitative
5. |improvemeants increasing assessed value by at least 100%, annexations, and tangible |$ 633,611 | (5)
personal property value over 115% of the previous year's value. Subtract deletions.)
6. |Current year adjusted taxable value (Line 4 minus Line 5) S 177,682,991 | (6)
7. |Prior year FINAL gross taxable value from prior year applicable Form DR-403 series $ 177,915,511 | (7)
Does the taxing authority include tax increment financing areas? If yes, enter number Number
; YE N 8
8 of worksheets (DR-420TIF) attached. If none, enter 0 LI e 0 (6)
Does the taxing authority levy a voted debt service millage or a millage voted for 2 Number
9. |yearsorless unders. 9(b), Article VII, State Constitution? If yes, enter the number of  |[] YES NO 9
DR-420DEBT, Certification of Voted Debt Millage forms attached. If none, enter 0 0
Property Appraiser Certification | certify the taxable values above are correct to the best of my knowledge.
SIGN | signature of Property Appraiser: Date:
e B perty App
Electronically Certified by Property Appraiser 7/1/2016 3:00 PM

SECTIONII :

COMPLETED BY TAXING AUTHORITY

If this portion of the form is not completed in FULL your taxing authority will be denied TRIM certification and
possibly lose its millage levy privilege for the tax year. If any line is not applicable, enter -0-.

Prior year operating millage levy (If prior year millage was adjusted then use adjusted
12, millage from Form DR-422) 8.8195 R 900 ), 00
11. |Prior year ad valorem proceeds (Line 7 multiplied by Line 10, divided by 1,000) ] 1,569,126 | (11)
12 Amount, if eny, paid or applied in prior year as a consequence of an obligation measured by a $ (12)
" |dedicated increment value (Sum of either Lines 6¢ or Line 7a for all DR-420TIF forms) 0
13. |Adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds (Line 11 minus Line 12) 3 1,569,126 | (13)
14. |Dedicated increment value, if any (Sum of either Line 6b or Line 7e for all DR-420TIF forms) $ 0| (14)
15. |Adjusted current year taxable value (Line 6 minus Line 14) S 177,682,991 | (15)
16. |Current year rolled-back rate (Line 13 divided by Line 15, multiplied by 1,000) 8.8310 per $1000 | (16)
17. |Current year proposed operating millage rate 8.8310 per $1000 | (17)
Total taxes to be levied at proposed millage rate (Line 17 multiplied by Line 4, divided (18)
18. by 1,000) s 1,574,714

Continued on page 2




DR-420

R. 5/12
Page 2
. . Count Independent Special District
19.| TYPE of principal authority (check one) o Y N (19)
Municipality [ ] Water Management District
Applicable taxing authority (check one) Principal Authority [ ] Dependent Special District 00)
20.
[ ] msTU [ ] water Management District Basin
21.| Is millage levied in more than one county? (check one) D Yes No (21)
DEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICTS AND MSTUs @ STOP HERE - SIGN AND SUBMIT
27, |Enter the total adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds of the principal authority, all
"|dependent spacial districts, and MSTUs levying a millage. (The sum of Line 13 from all DR-420 1,569,126 (22)
forms)
23.|Current year aggregate rolled-back rate (Line 22 divided by Line 15, multiplied by 1,000) 8.8310 per $1,000 | (23)
24.|Current year aggregate rolled-back taxes (Line 4 multiplied by Line 23, divided by 1,000) 1,574,714 | (24)
Enter total of all operating ad valorem taxes proposed to be levied by the principal
25.|taxing authority, all dependent districts, and MSTUs, if any. (The sum of Line 18 from all 1,574,714 | (25)
DR-420 forms)
26, |Current year proposed aggregate millage rate (Line 25 divided by Line 4, multiplied GG per $1,000 | (26)
by 1,000) :
27 Current year proposed rate as a percent change of rolled-back rate (Line 26 divided by %l @27)
"|Line 23, minus 1, multiplied by 100) 0.00
First public Date: Time: Place:
budget hearing
| certify the millages and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge.
Taxing Authority Certification | The millages comply with the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of
- eithers. 200.071 ors. 200.081, F.S.
I Signature of Chief Administrative Officer : Date:
G
N Title : Contact Name and Contact Title :
Elizabeth Carsten, Finance Director
H Terrance Stewart, City Administrator
E |Mailing Address : Physical Address :
R PO BOX 1000 PO BOX 1000
E
City, State, Zip : Phone Number : Fax Number:
ARCADIA B 34265 863-494-4114 863-494-4712

Instructions on page 3



; | Reset Form | | Print Form
s DR-420
E R.5/12
- CERTIFICATION OF TAXABLE VALUE e
£ Florida Administrative Code
FLORIDA Effective 11/12
Year: 2016 County:  DESOTO
Principal Authority : Taxing Authority :
CITY OF ARCADIA CITY OF ARCADIA
SECTIONI: COMPLETED BY PROPERTY APPRAISER
1. |Current year taxable value of real property for operating purposes 5 151,890,721 | (1)
2. |Current year taxable value of personal property for operating purposes 3 26,067,920 | (2)
3. |Current year taxable value of centrally assessed property for operating purposes ] 357,961 | (3)
4. |Current year gross taxable value for operating purposes (Line 1 plus Line 2 plus Line 3) |$ 178,316,602 | (4)
Current year net new taxable value (Add new construction, additions, rehabilitative
5. |improvements increasing assessed value by at least 100%, annexations, and tangible |$ 633,611 | (5
personal property value over 115% of the previous year's value. Subtract deletions.)
6. |Current year adjusted taxable value (Line 4 minus Line 5) $ 177,682,991 | (6)
7. |Prior year FINAL gross taxable value from prior year applicable Form DR-403 series ) 177,915,511 | (7)
Does the taxing authority include tax increment financing areas? If yes, enter number Number
: 8
§ of workshzets (DR-420TIF) attached. If none, enter 0 [ Yes NO 0 (®)
Does the taxing authority levy a voted debt service millage or a millage voted for 2 Number
9. |years or less under s. 9(b), Article VII, State Constitution? If yes, enter the number of [ ] YES NO 9)
DR-420DEBT, Certification of Voted Debt Millage forms attached. If none, enter 0 0
Property Appraiser Certification | certify the taxable values above are correct to the best of my knowledge.
SIGN | ignature of Property Appraiser: Date:
HERE g operty Appraise
Electronically Certified by Property Appraiser 7/1/2016 3:00 PM

SECTIONII :

COMPLETED BY TAXING AUTHORITY

If this portion of the form is not completed in FULL your taxing authority will be denied TRIM certification and
possibly lose its millage levy privilege for the tax year. If any line is not applicable, enter -0-.

Prior year operating millage levy (If prior year millage was adjusted then use adjusted
Ly millage from Form DR-422) 8.8195 perytooe | {10)
11. |Prior year ad valorem proceeds (Line 7 multiplied by Line 10, divided by 1,000) S 1,569,126 | (11)
12 Amount, if any, paid or applied in prior year as a consequence of an obligation measured by a 5 (12)
" |dedicated increment value (Sum of either Lines 6¢ or Line 7a for all DR-420TIF forms) 0
13. |Adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds (Line 11 minus Line 12) S 1,569,126 | (13)
14. |Dedicated increment value, if any (Sum of either Line 6b or Line 7e for all DR-420TIF forms) $ 01| (14)
15. |Adjusted current year taxable value (Line 6 minus Line 14) S 177,682,991 | (15)
16. |Current year rolled-back rate (Line 13 divided by Line 15, multiplied by 1,000) 8.8310 per $1000 | (16)
17. |Current year proposed operating millage rate 8.8195 per $1000 | (17)
Total taxes to be levied at proposed millage rate (Line 17 multiplied by Line 4, divided (18)
18 oy 1,000 s Lk

Continued on page 2




DR-420

R. 5/12
Page 2
I : Count Independent Special District
19 TYPE of principal authority (check one) L ‘ L (19)
Municipality D Water Management District
Applicable taxing authority (check one) Principal Authority [ ] Dependent Special District i
20.
[ ] msTU [ ] Water Management District Basin
21.| Ismillage levied in more than one county? (check one) D Yes No (21)
DEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICTS AND MSTUs @ STOP HERE - SIGN AND SUBMIT
22 Enter the total adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds of the principal authority, all
"|dependent special districts, and MSTUs levying a millage. (The sum of Line 13 from all DR-420 1,569,126 | (22)
forms)
23.|Current year aggregate rolled-back rate (Line 22 divided by Line 15, multiplied by 1,000) 8.8310 per $1,000 | (23)
24.|Current year aggregate rolled-back taxes (Line 4 multiplied by Line 23, divided by 1,000) 1,574,714 | (24)
Enter total of all operating ad valorem taxes proposed to be levied by the principal
25.|taxing authority, all dependent districts, and MSTUs, if any. (The sum of Line 18 from all 1,572,663 | (25)
DR-420 forms)
2%6. Current year proposed aggregate millage rate (Line 25 divided by Line 4, multiplied §5755 per $1,000 | (26)
by 1,000) ’
27 Current year proposed rate as a percent change of rolled-back rate (Line 26 divided by % (27)
A h i b
Line 23, minus 1, multiplied by 100) 013

First public Date: Time : Place::
budget hearing

| certify the millages and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge.
Taxing Authority Certification | The millages comply with the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of
S eithers. 200.071 ors. 200.081, F.S.
| Signature of Chief Administrative Officer : Date:
G
N Title: Contact Name and Contact Title :
Elizabeth Carsten, Finance Director

H Terrance Stewart, City Administrator
E |Mailing Address: Physical Address :
R PO BOX 1000 PO BOX 1000
E

City, State, Zip: Phone Number : Fax Number:

ARCARIN, FL 34268 863-494-4114 863-494-4712

Instructions on page 3
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CITY OF ARCADIA

SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS
AS OF JULY 7, 2016

REVENUES:

| AMENDED ACTUAL » 1 -

. s . AINING EC'D

FUND: | BUDGET REVENUE REM ‘ ING | %R
GENERAL FUND: 4,836,924 3,831,701 1,005,223 79.2%
SM. CTY SURTAX/ CAP IMP.: 428,136 386,047 42,089 90.2%
ROAD / STREET PROJECTS 1,144,764 1,144,764 0.00| 100.0%
MCSWAIN RESTORATION 544,726 544,726 0.00| 100.0%
ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
WATER/SEWER FUND: 5,326,915 3,624,935 1,701,980 68.0%
SOLID WASTE FUND: 793,799 627,076 166,723 79.0%
AIRPORT FUND: 283,452 206,560 76,892 72.9%
TOTAL ALL FUNDS: 13,358,716 10,365,809 2,992,907 77.6%
EXPENSES
o : BUDGETED ACTUAL : .

- . AINING USED
FUND: | EXPENSES EXPENSES REMAIN ‘ % ~
GENERAL FUND: 4,836,924 3,445,931 1,390,993 71.2%
SM. CTY SURTAX/ CAP IMP.; 428,136 37,511 390,625 8.8%
ROAD / STREET PROJECTS 1,144,764 638,729 506,035 55.8%
MCSWAIN RESTORATION 544,726 464,235 80,491 85.2%
ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

WATER/SEWER FUND: 5,326,915 2,516,151 2,810,764 47.2%
SOLID WASTE FUND: 793,799 477,955 315,844 60.2%
AIRPORT FUND: 283,452 76,997 206,455 27.2%
TOTAL ALL FUNDS: 13,358,716 7,657,509 5,701,207 57.3%




CITY OF ARCADIA

REVENUE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND
AS OF JULY 7, 2016
, AMENDED ‘ ,
GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
AD VALORUM TAXES
Ad Valorem Taxes - Current 1,473,256 | 1,430,814 42,442 97.1%
Ad Valorem Taxes - Delinquent - - 0.0%
Interest on AD Valorem Tax - 85 (85)] 100.0%
Tax Certificate Sales - 95,776 (95,776) 0.0%
Total AD Valorem Taxes 1,473,256 | 1,526,675 (53,419)( 103.6%
I ; AMENDED _ A
ISA£E§ & USE TAX . BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
State Local Option Fuel Tax New (1-5 Cent Tax) 88,274 68,696 19,578 77.8%
Gas Tax 5 & 6 Cents (1-6 Cent Tax) 181,642 137,853 43,789] 75.9%
Total Sales & Use Tax 269,916 206,549 63,367 76.5%
} j AMENDED ‘ .,
fF.RANCHISNE FEES BUDGET ACTUAL | REMAINING|% REC'D
Electricity Franchise 400,000 328,003 71,997 | 82.0%
Total Franchise Fees 400,000 328,003 71,997 82.0%
UTILITY'SERVICE TAX (PST) BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING [% REC'D
Electricity Utility Tax 300,000 277,846 22,154 92.6%
Water Utility Tax 107,000 111,701 (4,701)| 104.4%
Gas Utility Tax 20,000 13,030 6,970 65.1%
Communications Service Tax 227,125 149,224 77,901 65.7%
Total Utility Service Tax 654,125 551,800 102,325 84.4%
: » ;‘ AMENDED :
'OTHER GENERAL TAXES BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Local Business Tax Receipts 40,000 16,980 23,020| 42.5%
Total Other General Taxes 40,000 16,980 23,020 | 42.5%
P AMENDED| | |
OTHER'REVENUES | . | BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Cemetary Lots 9,000 10,497 (1,497)| 116.6%
Land Sales - 7,500 (7,500)
Total Other Revenues 9,000 17,997 (8,997) 116.6%
T : P AMENDED : . .
BUILDING PERMITS BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Building Permits 5,000 11,370 (6,370)| 227.4%
Total Building Permits 5,000 11,370 (6,370)| 227.4%

Page 1 of 5



CITY OF ARCADIA

REVENUE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND
AS OF JULY 7, 2016
: _ _ AMENDED ,
GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL ‘| REMAINING|% REC'D
OTHER LICENSES & PERMITS
Zoning Fees 2,750 400 2,350 14.5%
Maps - - - 0.0%
Other Licenses & Permits 6,000 775 5,225 12.9%
Total Other Licenses & Permits 8,750 1,175 7,575 13.4%
L 'AMENDED | , R
FEDERAL GRANTS | ' BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
COPS Grant - - - 0.0%
Victims of Crime Grant (Voca) 29,204 32,646 (3,442)| 111.8%
Rural Investigation Grant - - - 0.0%
JAGC 2016-DESO-2 R3-097 GRANT 8,437 8,363 74 0.0%
JAGC 2015 1 R1 003 BODY CAMERA GRANT - 3,180 (3,180) 0.0%
Total Federal Grants 37,641 44,189 (6,548) 117.4%
! AMENDED |
STATE.GRANTS BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Dept. of Transportation US 17 Widening - - - 0.0%
Dept. of Economic OPP Planning Grant - - - 0.0%
Hurricane Grant - 0.0%
Total State Grants - - - 0.0%
S AMENDED [ .
STATE SHARED REVENUES BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
State Half Cents Sales Tax 268,692 216,184 52,508 | 80.5%
State Shared Motor Fuel 66,176 48,218 17,958 | 72.8%
State Shared Sales Tax 213,048 155,148 57,900} 90.8%
Mobile Home License 2,500 2,271 229 90.8%
Alcoholic Beverage Licenses 3,300 4,731 (1,431)| 143.4%
State of FL Lighting Maintenance Agreement 44,498 - 44,498 0.0%
State of FL Traffic Light Maintenance Agreement 43,168 - 43,168 0.0%
State of FL Pension Contribution - - 0.0%
Total State Shared Revenues 641,382 426,552 214,830 | 66.5%
‘ : AMENDED
SHARED REVENUES §FROM LOCAL UNITS BUDGET ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
School Guard Crossing - School Board 18,000 13,940 4,060 77.4%
DeSoto County Business Tax 1,500 2,249 (749) | 100.0%
Total Shared Revenue from Local Units 19,500 16,189 3,311 | 83.0%
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CITY OF ARCADIA

REVENUE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND
AS OF JULY 7, 2016
_ , AMENDED

GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
PUBLIC SERVICE REVENUE
Police Services - - - 0.00%
Fire Protection Services - MSBU 239,980 - 239,980 | 0.00%
Accident Reports 900 1,568 (668) [174.24%
Code Enforcement FFees 1,000 1,000 | 0.00%

Total Public Safety Revenue 241,880 1,568 240,312 | 0.65%

o ‘ AMENDED
CULTURE/RECREATION BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
GOLF COURSE & PRO SHOP
Golf Course Green Fees 75,000 67,727 7,273 90.3%
Cart Rentals 100,000 81,187 18,813 | 81.2%
Golf Course Membership Fees 100,000 67,916 32,084 67.9%
Pro Shop & Food and Beverage 60,000 26,880 33,120| 44.8%
Total Golf Course & Pro Shop 335,000 243,710 91,290 | 72.7%

Other Culture / Recreation
Rent Fees for Speer Center 1,000 - 1,000 0.0%
Way Building Rent - - - 0.0%
Parks Maintenance Agreements - - - 0.0%

Total Other Culture / Recreation 1,000 - 1,000 0.0%

Total Culture / Recreation 336,000 243,710 92,290 72.5%
. | ’; AMENDED |
FINES:& FORFEITURES BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING |% REC'D
Court Fines 23,000 35,673 (12,673)] 155.1%
Police Education - - - 0.0%
Misc Charges for Services 8,000 6,199 1,801 77.5%
Taxi Application Fees 4,000 2,150 1,850 | 53.8%
Parking Violations 500 627 (127) 0.0%
Towing Fees - - - 0.0%
Impound 8,500 3,300 5,200 38.8%
Confiscated and Restitution (from Law Enforcement Trust) - - - 0.0%

Total Fines and Forfeitures 44,000 47,948 (3,948)| 109.0%

] AMENDED N |

INTEREST EARNINGS BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Law Enforcement Trust Income - - - 0.0%
Other Interest 250 - 250 0.0%
Unrealized Gain - - - 0.0%
Bond Interest - - - 0.0%

Total interest Earnings 250 - 250 0.0%

Page 3 of 5



CITY OF ARCADIA

REVENUE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND
AS OF JULY 7, 2016
_ o , 5 AMENDED |
GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING % REC'D
RENTS & ROYALTIES
Mobile Home Park Rent 194,000 162,489 31,511 83.8%
Mobile Home Park Laundry 1,000 604 396 { 60.4%
Total Rents & Royalties 195,000 163,093 31,907 83.6%
LT AMENDED N ]
SALES/COMPFOR'LOSS OF FIXED ASSET  BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Sale of Fixed Asset - - - -
» S | AMENDED .
SALE OF SURPLUS MATERIAI.S/SCRAP BUDGET ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Sale of Surplus Materials 5,000 272 4,728 5.4%
Total Sale of Surplus Materials 5,000 272 4,728 5.4%
I L : AMENDED o
CONTRIBUTIONS/DONATIONS FROM PRIVATE BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Miscellaneous Donations -Police - - - 0.0%
Jim Space Foundation Donation - - - 0.0%
Total Contributions/ Donations from Private - - - 0.0%
T AMENDED | | E
OTHER'MISC REVENUE " BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING |% REC'D
Copies - City Hall 200 123 77 | 61.5%
Copies - Police Station - - 0.0%
Miscellaneous 500 1,005 (505)| 201.0%
Miscellaneous Refunds - 56,534 (56,534) 0.0%
Special Detail APD 4,000 7,683 (3,683) 0.0%
Shop With A Cop - 12,376 (12,376) 0.0%
Housing Authority Prior Payment - - - 0.0%
Total Other Misc Revenue 4,700 77,720 (73,020)] 2.62%
T AMENDED -
CONTRIBUTION FROM OTHER FUNDS BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Transfer from Water (Loan) 53,000 - 53,000 0.0%
Transfer from Surtax to Streets for Street Sweeper (BA#2016-03) 19,171 19,171 - 100.0%
Transfer from Surtax to Fire Control for Fire Truck (BA#2016-03) 22,900 22,900 - 100.0%
Transfer from Surtax to Fire Control for Roof Rpr (BA#2016-03) 7,840 7,840 - 100.0%
Transfer from Street Project to Street Dept. (BAX#2016-03) 100,000 100,000 - 100.0%
Total Contribution from Other Funds 202,911 149,911 53,000 | 73.9%
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CITY OF ARCADIA

REVENUE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND
AS OF JULY 7, 2016
R . . | AMENDED . ,
CHARGE BACKS FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS BUDGET | ACTUAL |[REMAINING|% REC'D
Transfers In 248,613 - 248,613 0.0%
C ! AMENDED AR T

FUND BALANCE BUDGET | ACTUAL |REMAINING|% REC'D
Fund Balance - - 0.0%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 4,836,924 | 3,831,701 | 1,005,223 | 79.2%
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CITY OF ARCADIA

EXPENSE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND

AS OF AS OF JULY 7, 2016
LEGISLATIVE/COUNCIL EXPENSES
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL |} REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 22,932 19,117 3,815 | 83.4%
Operating Expenses 57,514 21,375 36,139 | 37.2%
TOTAL LEGISLATIVE/COUNCIL 80,446 40,491 39,955 | 50.3%
RETIREE & COUNCIL RETIREES
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 88,022 93,646 (5,624)} 106.4%
EXECUTIVES
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 326,339 261,713 64,626 | 80.2%
Operating Expenses 31,711 13,645 18,066 | 43.0%
TOTAL EXECUTIVE 358,050 275,358 82,692 | 76.9%
FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 168,284 132,716 35,568 | 78.9%
Operating Expenses 87,523 76,887 10,636 | 87.8%
TOTAL FINANCE & ADMINISTRATIVE 255,807 209,603 46,204 | 81.9%
LEGAL COUNCIL |
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Professional Services 70,100 37,361 32,739 | 53.3%
Other Legal Services 10,000 120 9,880 1.2%
TOTAL LEGAL COUNCIL 80,100 37,481 42,619 | 46.8%
COMPREHENSIVE {COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT)
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING {% USED
Personnel Expenses 71,060 51,176 19,884 | 72.0%
Operating Expenses 64,884 33,693 31,191 51.9%
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 135,944 84,869 51,075 | 62.4%
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CITY OF ARCADIA

EXPENSE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND

AS OF AS OF JULY 7, 2016
OTHER GOVERNMENT SERVICES
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 15,000 10,799 4,201 | 72.0%
Operating Expenses 157,816 131,816 26,000 | 83.5%
Contingency 116,638 - 116,638 0.0%
TOTAL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES 289,454 142,615 146,839 | 49.3%
LAW ENFORCEMENT
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 1,154,897 901,954 252,943 | 78.1%
Operating Expenses 220,862 146,735 74,127 | 66.4%
Capital Outlay 27,000 25,849 1,151 | 95.7%
TOTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT 1,402,759 | 1,074,538 328,221 | 76.6%
*NOTE: The Police & Fire Pension is split 50.5% for Police and 49.5% for Fire Control. The amount allocated to
Police year to date is $121,659.83. The amount for Fire is $119,250.73 and is expended under Fire Control.

VICTIMS OF CRIMES. GRANT

ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 40,479 34,563 5,916 | 85.4%
TOTAL VICTIMS OF CRIMES GRANT 40,479 34,563 5,916 | 85.4%
POLICE EQUIPMENT GRANT

ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
APD ANTI-DRUG - 2016 8,437 8,363 74| 99.1%
TOTAL POLICE EQUIPMENT GRANT 8,437 8,363 74 | 99.1%
SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD

ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 18,447 13,144 5303 | 71.3%
Operating Expenses 375 - 375 | 100.0%
TOTAL SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD 18,822 13,144 5,678 | 69.8%
SHOP WITH A COP EXPENSES

ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Operating Expenses - 10,335 (10,335)] 0.0%
TOTAL SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD - 10,335 (10,335) 0.0%
SPECIAL DETAIL | -

ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Operating Expenses - 1,223 (1,223)] 0.0%
TOTAL SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD - 1,223 (1,223) 0.0%
TOTAL ALL LAW ENFORCEMENT 1,470,497 | 1,142,166 328,331 | 77.7%
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CITY OF ARCADIA

EXPENSE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND

AS OF AS OF JULY 7, 2016
FIRE CONTROL
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Operating Expenses 438,222 325,407 112,815 | 74.3%
TOTAL FIRE CONTROL 438,222 325,407 112,815 | 74.3%
CEMETERY
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 37,478 30,714 6,764 | 82.0%
Operating Expenses 21,591 7,826 13,765 | 36.2%
TOTAL CEMETERY 59,069 38,540 20,529 | 65.2%
STREET DEPARTMENT
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 209,419 105,239 104,180 | 50.3%
Operating Expenses 220,254 180,304 39,950 | 81.9%
Capital Outlay 75,000 27,209 47,791 0.0%
TOTAL STREET DEPARTMENT 504,673 312,752 191,921 | 62.0%
OTHER TRANSPORTATION
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 9,390 7,573 1,817 | 80.6%
Operating Expenses 78,460 16,929 61,531 | 21.6%
TOTAL OTHER TRANSPORTATION 87,850 24,501 63,349 | 27.9%
VEHICLE AND FACILITY MAINTENANCE
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 105,506 81,117 24,389 | 76.9%
Operating Expenses 20,063 12,093 7,970 | 60.3%
Capital Outlay 3,500 2,556 944 | 73.0%
TOTAL VEHICLE AND FACILITY MAINTENANCE 129,069 95,766 33,303 | 74.2%
PARKS DEPARTMENT
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 170,001 119,403 50,598 | 70.2%
Operating Expenses 73,373 50,489 22,884 | 68.8%
Captial Outlay - - - 0.0%
TOTAL PARKS DEPARTMENT 243,374 169,892 73,482 | 69.8%
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CITY OF ARCADIA

EXPENSE BUDGET REPORT
GENERAL FUND

AS OF AS OF JULY 7, 2016
MOBILE HOME PARK
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING | % USED
Personnel Expenses 48,314 35,599 12,715 | 73.7%
Operating Expenses 117,453 81,000 36,453 | 69.0%
Capital Outlay 5,000 - 5,000 0.0%
TOTAL MOBILE HOME PARK 170,767 116,599 54,168 | 68.3%
GOLF COURSE
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 194,883 139,896 54,987 | 71.8%
Operating Expenses 215,831 160,739 55,092 | 74.5%
Capital Outlay 0.0%
TOTAL GOLF COURSE 410,714 300,636 110,078 | 73.2%
WAY:BUILDING. |
ACCOUNTS AMENDED BUDGET | ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
Personnel Expenses 5,366 7,820 (2,454)| 145.7%
Operating Expenses 29,500 27,789 1,711 | 94.2%
TOTAL WAY BUILDING 34,866 35,609 (743)| 102.1%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 4,836,924 | 3,445,931 1,390,994 | 71.2%
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CITY OF ARCADIA
SM. CTY SURTAX/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

BUDGETED REVENUE
AS OF JULY 7, 2016
Amended
Budget Actual Remaining % Used
Small Cty. Surtax 428,136 386,047 42,089 90.2%

Interest SBA -
Other Interest Earnings -

Interest on Investment Acct -
Unrealized Gain -
Other Miscellaneous -
Fund Balance Reserves -

Total Surtax/Capital 428,136 386,047 42,089 90.2%



CITY OF ARCADIA

SM. CTY SURTAX/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

Way Building

Council Chambers

Improvements (Computer Upgrade)
Total Way Building

Streets
Street, Sidewalks & Curbs
Stormwater Projects
Machinery & Equipment
Principal Bond Payments
ADM Fees - Bond 2003
Interest Bond Payments
Bond Administration Expense
Improvements (Computer Upgrades)
Total Streets

Debt Service
Principal
Interest

Total Debt Service
Police
Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Total Police

Parks and Recreation
Improvements Golf Course
Land

Machinery & Equipment

Total Parks

Contingency
Total Transfers

Total Capital Improvement/ Surtax

EXPENSES
AS OF JULY 7, 2016

Budgeted

10,000.00
10,000.00

60,000

60,000

358,136

428,136

Actual

4,211.31
4,211.31

33,300

33,300

37,511

Remaining

5,789
5,789

26,700

26,700

358,136

390,625

% Used

42.1%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

8.8%



CITY OF ARCADIA
ROAD / STREET PROJECTS

REVENUES / EXPENSES

AS OF JULY 7, 2016

ROAD / STREET PROJECTS - REVENUES

R , AMENDED o
REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL [ REMAINING | % REC'D
TRANSFER FROM STREET RESERVE 500,000 500,000 -| 100.0%
TRANSFER FROM INFRASTRUCTURE 500,000 500,000 -| 100.0%
TRANSFER IN FROM STREET RESERVE 83,746 83,746 -1 100.0%
TRANSFER IN FROM INFRASTRUCTURE RES 161,018 161,018 - 100.0%
TRANSFER QUT TO STREET DEPT FOR

POTHOLE PATCHER PROJECT (100,000)|  (100,000) - 100.0%
TOTAL ROAD / STREET PROJECTS - REVENUE 1,144,764 | 1,144,764 -|  100.0%
ROAD / STREET PROJECTS - EXPENSES

P : AMENDED | o o Lo
EXPENSES . BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL| REMAINING| % USED
Street, Sidewalks & Curbs 683,746 453,694 230,052 66.4%
Stormwater Projects 461,018 185,035 275,983 40.1%
TOTAL ROAD / STREET PROJECTS - EXPENSE 1,144,764 638,729 506,035 55.8%




CITY OF ARCADIA
MCSWAIN RESTORATION

REVENUES / EXPENSES

AS OF JULY 7, 2016

MCSWAIN RESTORATION - REVENUES

L , AMENDED :
REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL | REMAINING | % REC'D
Mosaic Contribution 500,000 500,000 - 100.0%
Transferred from Surtax 44,726 44,726 - 100.0%
TOTAL MCSWAIN REVENUES 544,726 544,726 - 100.0%
MCSWAIN RESTORATION - EXPENSES
o AMENDED _
EXPENSES BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL| REMAINING| % USED
Contractual 544,726 464,235 80,491 85.2%
TOTAL MCSWAIN EXPENSES 544,726 464,235 80,491 85.2%




CITY OF ARCADIA
WATER/SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

REVENUE
AS OF JULY 7, 2016
WATER/SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUES:
e AMENDED ; : .

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL |REMAINING| % REC'D
Water Revenue 2,294,541 1,881,850 412,691 82.0%
Water Tap Fees 15,000 70,395 (55,395) 469.3%
Water Reconnect Fees 25,000 16,450 8,550 65.8%
Late Fees 100,000 116,174 (16,174) 116.2%
Sewer Revenue 1,637,374 1,349,746 287,628 82.4%
Sewer Tap Fees 5,000 160,680 (155,680)| 3213.6%
Water Meter Deposit interest - - - 0.0%
Lee Avenue Water & Sewer Impr. Grand - DEP 250,000 - 250,000 0.0%
Water Pollution SRF/GRANT - DEP 1,000,000 29,157 970,843 0.0%
Miscellaneous - 483 (483) 0.0%
Leachate Payments - - 0.0%
Fund Balance - - - 0.0%
Total Current Revenues 5,326,915 | 3,624,935 | 1,701,980 68.0%




CITY OF ARCADIA
WATER/SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

EXPENSES
AS OF JULY 7, 2016
WATER/SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENSES:
; AMENDED . ,

EXPENSES | BUDGET |YTD ACTUAL|REMAINING | %:USED
Water Treatment Plant

Personnel Services 150,361 101,668 48,694 | 67.6%

Operating Expenses 347,425 202,880 144,545 | 58.4%

Capital Outlay - - - 0.0%

Debt Service Principal 358,696 152,848 205,848 0.0%
Total WTP Expenses 856,482 457,396 399,087 | 53.4%
Waste Water Plant

Personnel Services 280,720 203,028 77,692 | 72.3%

Operating Expenses 594,756 389,214 205,542 | 65.4%

Capital Outlay 25,000 - 25,000 0.0%
Total WWP EExpenses 900,476 592,242 308,234 | 65.8%
Utility Collections & Billing

Personnel Services 176,473 143,654 32,819 | 81.4%

Operating Expenses 122,637 63,266 59,3711 51.6%
Total UB Expenses: 299,110 206,920 92,191 | 69.2%
Water Systems

Personnel Services 177,113 128,310 48,804 | 72.4%

Operating Expenses 137,545 55,986 81,559 | 40.7%

Capital Outlay 30,000 8,106 21,894 | 27.0%

Total Debt Service 625,558 583,546 42,012 | 93.3%
Total Water Systems Expenses 970,216 775,948 194,268 | 80.0%
Waste Water Systems

Personnel Services 148,057 122,440 25,617 | 82.7%

Operating Expenses 98,392 45,713 52,679 | 46.5%

Capital Outlay 1,250,000 244,669 | 1,005,331 0.0%
Total Waste Water Systems Expenses 1,496,449 412,822 | 1,083,627 | 27.6%
City-County Interconnect -
US #17 Widening - 25,171 (25,171)
Subtotal: 4,522,733 | 2,470,499 | 2,052,236 | 54.6%
RENEW AND REPLACE 450,000 45,652 404,348 | 10.1%
CONTINGENCY 354,182 - 354,182 0.0%
TOTAL WATER/SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENSES: | 5,326,915 | 2,516,151 | 2,810,765 47.2%




CITY OF ARCADIA
SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND

REVENUES / EXPENSES
AS OF JULY 7, 2016

SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUES:

| AMENDED | . __
REVENUE SQURCE - - BUDGET YTD ACTUAL | REMAINING | % REC'D
Garbage Revenue 773,799 621,890 151,909 80.4%
Extra Trash Pick-Up 20,000 5,186 14,814 25.9%
Other Income - - - 0.0%
Miscellaneous - - 0.0%
TOTAL SOLID WASTE REVENUES 793,799 627,076 166,723 79.0%
SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENSES:

- ~ AMENDED _

EXPENSES | BUDGET YTD ACTUAL | REMAINING | % USED
PERSONNEL EXPENSES 284,378 210,020 74,358 73.9%
OPERATING EXPENSES 236,421 118,061 118,360 49.9%
LANDFILL CHARGES 273,000 149,874 123,126 54.9%
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - 0.0%
TOTAL SOLID WASTE EXPENSES 793,799 477,955 315,844 60.2%




CITY OF ARCADIA

AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND

REVENUES / EXPENSES
AS OF JULY 7, 2016

AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUES:

o AMENDED
REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL |REMAINING |% REC'D
Federal Grants - F.A.A. - Taxiway B 162,900 - 162,900 0.0%
State Grants -F.D.O.T. - Taxiway B 18,100 - 18,100 0.0%
FAA-Master Plan - 131,225 (131,225)
Rent 89,084 75,335 13,749 | 84.6%
Insurance Reimbursements - - - 0.0%
Transfer from Fund Balance 13,368 - 13,368 0.0%
TOTAL AIRPORT REVENUES 283,452 206,560 76,892 | 84.6%
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENSES:
‘ ; AMENDED
EXPENSES | BUDGET YTD ACTUAL | REMAINING |% USED
PERSONNEL EXPENSES 11,914 434 11,480 3.6%
OPERATING EXPENSES 90,538 69,403 21,135 | 76.7%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 181,000 - 181,000 0.0%
MASTER PLAN 7,160 (7,160)
TOTAL AIRPORT EXPENSES 283,452 76,997 206,455 | 27.2%




